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Through a year of change, we've remained committed to -

leading the industry with original artistry and product design.
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Our new management team orings the vision and experience
needed to drive our business strategy and direction. in early 200,
Enesco strengthened its executive management team with the appointment of a new Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Marketing Officer and Chief information Officer. The collaboration of this

new executive team will direct Enesco’s multi-year strategy going forward.

LEADERSHIP TEAM

from left to right: D. Nicklin, J. Smith, J. Goldberg,
P. Manley, M.Rumak, C. Passmore-McLaughlin.

Cynthia Passmore-MclLaughlin President and Chief Executive Officer
Paula Manley Chief Financial Officer

Jeff Smith Chief Operations Officer

Michaél Rumak Chief information Officer

David Nicklin Chief Marketing Officer

Josette Goldberg Senior Vice President, Human Resources & Administration




Ine enesco board or Directors integrity, strengtn and commitment

are fundamental in establishing the momentum needed to move our business strategy

forward. Culminating from vast experience and expertise, the Board of Directors are integral in

guiding Enesco through a year of change, new compliance regulations and building a strong

leadership team.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Anne-Lee Verville

IBM Worldwide
Education industry
(retired) General Manager

Chairman of the Board

Audit Committee

Compensation & Human
Resources Committee

Governance Committee

Donna Brooks Lucas
DBL Multi-Media Group, LLC
President and CEO

Audit Committee

Compensation & Human
Resources Committee

Governance Committee

Judith R. Haberkorn

Bell Atlantic
{retired) President, Consumer
Sales & Services

Audit Committee

Compensation & Human
Resources Committee

Chairman, Governance
Committee

Hector J. Orci
La Agencia de Orci
& Associates,
Chairman and CEO
Audit Committee

Governance Committee

Leonard A. Campanaro
Armstrong World Industries
(retired) Chief Financial Officer
Chairman, Audit Committee

Compensation & Human
Resources Committee

Cynthia Passmore-
MclLaughlin

Enesco Group, Inc,
President and CEO

George R. Ditomassi
Milton Bradley Company
(former) Chairman and CEO
Audit Committee

Compensation & Human
Resources Committee

Thane A. Pressman

Carvel Corporation
(former) Chief Executive
Officer

Audit Committee

Chairman, Compensation
& Human Resources
Committee
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results. Simply stated, 2004 was not the year Enesco expected it to be.

However, some of the changes Enesco endured positioned the Company for a more positive future. With
a new management team in place, we are driving the strategic direction for 2005 and beyond. Our strategy will
be centered around leveraging Enesco’s core strengths, with a focus on four strategic principles that will build
the Company’s growth platform and direct each and every decision we make for the Company and our brands.
We will....

« Build and capitalize on the strength and viability of our intellectual property assets,

« Anticipate the demands and needs of our customers and of the evolving marketplace
« Raise the bar of excellence in innovation and product design, and

« Establish operational excellence and cost disciplines.

The main focus of 2005 will be to improve and excel with our executional capabilities, as this will be the driver of
our future growth. First and foremost will be Enesco’s transition to the core components of its legacy information
system. This, along with a number of upgrades to the legacy software, will stabilize our information systems. We
are on track to complete this transition in the third quarter of 2005.

Other focuses for the year include:

Build our brands Enesco continues to receive positive responses to its products in the marketplace, especially
Enesco’s own intellectual properties and trademarked products. In February 2005, we developed a simplified,
focused marketing structure to manage our brand assets. We will leverage our brands across three specific price
points: premium, mid-tier and mass. We will diversify our overall product line to increase our presence in specific
growth categories and retail channels: giftware, and home and garden décor. At the same time, we will review all
of our brands and products to identify ways to increase revenue and improve operating margin.

Focus on the external marketplace Enesco will have an external focus, which will keep the Company ahead
of the competition with its marketing, pricing and product development. We will reduce our dependence on the
collectibles market, which has seen an ongoing decline in recent years, and focus on farger, growing categories.
Enesco has a significant opportunity with home accents and discount stores, which comprise 42 percent of the
$60 billion home and garden marketplace - a marketplace which currently is growing by more the 4 percent
annually. We already realized some of this potential last year by more than doubling our Home & Garden
business with the introduction of specific home and garden décor formats, including lamps, accent tables, and
outdoor decorative accents - product formats that align with consumers’ desire to update their home décor.

Excel at product innovation Enesco is raising the bar of excellence in innovation and product design. In early
2005, we implemented a new disciplined product development process, which will anticipate the opportunities
in today’s marketplace, drive creativity and innovation, and shorten the product development cycle. We will
focus our resources in areas where our intellectual property and unique product design add value and address
marketplace opportunities. Ultimately this will enhance our productivity and bring more successful Enesco
products to market.

Improve our executional capabilities In February 2005, we made changes to improve our efficiency in selling
to and servicing our customers. Specifically, we changed our Sales structure to mirror that of retailers that use
centralized buying or individual store buying.

We aiso will address our level of operating expenses. While the costs related to the ERP system were a significant
component of the increased operating expenses for 2004, other expenses were also at higher than desired levels.
We see a significant opportunity to drive cost-control and expense disciplines, and operational efficiencies into
our daily operations, including integrating our 2004 acquisitions of Dartington Crystal and Gregg Gift.

In short, Enesco is looking ahead. | see many opportunities to improve our business. We will to continue
leverage our intellectual property, develop innovative products and create operational efficiencies to drive top-
and bottom-line growth. | believe Enesco is stabilizing its performance and building a growth platform that will
drive results over the long term to increase profitability and shareholder return.

Since joining Enesco in October 2004, | have witnessed the dedication our Board of Directors, employees
and our customers have for this Company. | thank our employees for their hard work and commitment during
the past year. On behalf of Enesco’s Board of Directors and employees, | thank you, our fellow shareholders, for
your continuing confidence in our strategic vision for a brighter tomorrow.

Sincerely, 2

Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin
President & CEO
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Cautionary Factors That May Affect Future Results

This report and other written reports and oral statements made from time to time by
Enesco and its management may contain cautionary or “forward-looking statements” as
defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 19895,

These statements can be identified by the use of the words such as “anticipate,”
“Yestimate,” “expect,” “project,” “intend,” “plan,” “bhelieve,” and other words of
similar meaning. In particular, these include statements relating to intentions,
beliefs or current expectations concerning, among other things, future performance,
results of operations, the outcome of contingencies such as legal proceedings, and
financial condition. Forward-looking statements give current expectations or forecasts
of future events. They do not relate strictly to historical or current facts.

Bny or all of the forward-looking statements made in this report and in any other
public statements may turn out to be incorrect. By their nature, forward-looking
statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on
circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. We caution you that actual
future results of operations may vary materially from forward-looking statements. Any
forward-looking statements made in this report speak only as of the date of such
statement. We wundertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, except as may be
reguired under applicable securities laws. However, you should consult any further
disclosures we make on related subjects in Forms 10-Q, 8-K, 10-K or other reports
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

It is not possible to predict or identify all factors that could potentially cause
actual results to differ materially from expected and historical results. Some such

factors are:

Business Environment

e Day~to-day effects of current economic conditions and market fluctuations.
This includes contributing factors such as interest and foreign currency rate
changes, which may create a positive or negative impact on operations.

e (Consumer interest in products 1s seasonal and may vary based on current market
demand fluctuatiocns, and time of vear.

s Effects of terrorist activity and armed conflict, possibly causing a business
disruption in global economic activity, changes 1in logistics, and security
arrangements. This 1s particularly significant with respect to our heavy
reliance on external manufacturing facilities located .in China.

» Competitive activities, particularly those of our main competitors, can
significantly influence giftware prices and product demand.

¢ The level of =success of our new product introductions and those of our
competitors will impact our competitive position.

e Ability to realize projected cost savings considering the evolving business and
regulatory environment, and the degree of success in implementing planned
organizational restructurings and process improvements, particularly among the
operations in the United States.

e 1Ability to continue to renew or enter into new credit facilities to finance
operational requirements at competitive cost and interest rates.

s Ability to timely and efficiently resolve current and future Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) system issues with partial reliance on the Company’s
former legacy functioning operating systems.

Sales Environment

® Apility to secure, maintain and renew licenses, particularly Jim Shore
(Heartwood Creek), Priscilla Hillman (Cherished Teddies), Disney and Precious
Moments, which have been top performers and make up approximately 40% of
associated product line revenues.

e Changes in the geographical mix of revenue for the United States and
International will impact gross margin.

* Mass retailers’ attempts at direct sourcing and determining the right product
designs.

¢ Sales and profitability can be affected by changes over time in consumer
preferences from one type of product to another. This may create a shift in
demand from products with higher margins to those with lower margins, or to
products we do not sell at all.




Production, Procurement and Distribution

¢ Timing of customer orders, shipments to the United States from China
manufacturing facilities, and the ability to forecast and meet customer demands
for products in a timely and cost-effective manner.

e 2Ability to understand metrics to track and effectively manage manufacturing and
supply chain lead times, which cause fluctuations in inventory levels and order
fulfillment timeliness, can influence demand.

e Fluctuations in customs regulations, tariffs, freight, and political changes
can adversely affect results of operations.

e Availability to source products due to changes in conditions that impact
suppliers including environmental conditions, laws and regulations, litigation
involving suppliers, transportation disruptions, force majeure events and/or
business decisions made by suppliers could have an adverse impact on operating
results.

Legal and Other

e The actual events, circumstances, outcomes and amounts differing from
judgments, assumptions and estimates (including items potentially impacted by
the implementation of the ERP system in the United States) used in determining
the value of certain assets (including the amounts of related allowances),
liabilities, claims of undetermined merit and amount asserted against us for
various legal matters and other items reflected in consolidated financial
statements.

¢ Risk of trademarks and license infringements, and our ability to effectively
enforce our rights.

PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

General

Enesco Group, Inc. (the “Company” or “Enesco”) is a corporation organized iq 1937.
Enesco’s corporate headquarters are located at 225 Windsor Drive, Itasca, Illinois
60143. Enesco 1s a world leader in the gift, home décor, garden accessories, and

collectible industries. Enesco distributes products to a wide variety of specialty
gift retailers, home décor boutiques, garden stores, as well as mass-market chains and
direct retailers. Internationally, Enesco serves markets in the United Kingdom,
Canada, Europe, Australia, Mexico, Asia and the Pacific Rim. The Company’s product
lines include some of the world’s most recognizable brands, including, Heartwood Creek
by Jim Shore, Walt Disney Company, Walt Disney Classics Collection, Pooh & Friends,
Nickelodeon, Bratz, Halcyon Days, Lilliput Lane, Border Fine Arts, Cherished Teddies
and Precious Moments, among others.

Products include diverse lines of accent furniture, wall décor, garden accessories,
frames, desk accessories, figurines, cottages, musicals, music Dboxes, ornaments,
waterballs, candles, tableware, general home accessories and porcelain bisque
figures.

Enesco believes that demographic and economic trends support growth in home decor,

garden and gift lines. The home décor, gift and collectibles market for 2005 is
estimated at $67 billion, and is estimated to "be growing at greater than 4%
annually(l). The home redecoration focus continues to grow in the United States as

interest rates stay low. Outdoor living is a burgeoning lifestyle trend in the United
States, especially as the population shifts to the Sunbelt. The Company’s primary
customer is a woman over 25, with increased buying power. Enesco management believes
that the home décor, gift and collectibles product categories have good opportunities
for positive growth potential.

(1) Home Accents Research 2004 (2005 is a projection).




Product

Enesco’s gift, home décor, garden accessories and collectible product lines consist
of approximately 25,000 stock keeping units (SKU' s) worldwide, including
approximately 6,000 SKU’s sold in the United States. The product lines are comprised
of: 1) products licensed by Enesco and its subsidiaries from independent creative
designers; 2) Enesco’s collection of proprietary designs; and 3) products distributed
by Enesco under third-party distribution arrangements. The majority of Enesco
products are manufactured in China and have suggested retail prices ranging between
$5 to $500.

The best known 2004 trademark and copyright licensed Enesco product lines include:

® Walt Disney Company s NASCAR® » Mary Engelbreit™
e Walt Disney Classic e Rosalind Walshe® » John Deere®
Collection®
® Pooh & Friends® s Children of the Inner ® Rudolph the Red-Nosed
Light® Reindeer®
® Nickelodeon® s Halcyon Days® e Precious Moments®
® Bratz™ o My Little Kitchen Fairies™

The owned 2004 trademarks and copyright licensed Enesco product lines include:

® Heartwood Creek™ by ¢ Cherished Teddies®
Jim Shore

The best known 2004 proprietary Enesco product lines include:

® Foundations® e Lilliput Lane™ e Blcoming Wild™
e Dartington Crystal® » Circle of Love™
e Growing Up Birthday ® Border Fine Arts™

Girls®

The best known 2004 distributed Enesco product lines include:

e Nachtmann e Willowtree e Publications
International

In January 2004, Enesco expanded its relationship with Disney by becoming the
exclusive global licensee for the Walt Disney Classics Collection and assuming
management of the Walt Disney Collectors Society. The collection consists of sculpted
figurines that recreate moments from Disney's popular animated films. It is sold
through an independent sales force and 1is available globally at fine gift and
collectible stores, select Disney Stores, DisneyStore.com, Disney catalog and Disney
Theme Parks and Resorts around the world.

The Heartwood Creek by Jim Shore decorative line accounted for approximately $34
million or 13% of 2004 consolidated net revenues. The product line revenues increased
189% over the year 2003, making it the third year for increasing revenues from the
product line.

The most desired collectible lines in 2004 included, Walt Disney Classics Collection,
Cherished Teddies and Precious Moments. New items and limited edition pieces are
introduced each year to consumers. Also, yearly, a number of existing pieces are
retired from the product lines to allow for new introductions and to keep each line
balanced based on consumer demand. The collectible lines are marketed to promote
ongoing business and consumer interest.

Collector clubs are an integral component of the Enesco marketing program for the
cellectible product lines. Consumers may subscribe for exclusive product offerings
and newsletters as a member of the Enesco clubs. During 2004, the number of active
memberships for the Precious Moments and Cherished Teddies' <collectors clubs
decreased by approximately 20% from 2003 membership levels, continuing a downward
trend indicative of the declining market interest and demand for these collectible
products.




In 2004, Enesco assumed management of the Walt Disney Classics Collection collectors
club, adding over 28,000 members to Enesco’s collectible clubs. There were over
250,000 active members among all Enesco collectible clubs at the end of 2004. The
product lines sold to mass retailers in the United States are growing and include
many name brand licensed products, such as Disney, Nickelodeon, Bratz, NASCAR and
John Deere, which are popular with consumers.

Enesco expanded the breadth of its product offerings in 2004 while minimizing costs,

by entering into several strategic distribution arrangements. The current alliances
include:
® Nachtmann Crystal - for Enesco to sell a line of crystal giftware in England

and Ireland. Enesco has been selling the line in the United States, but expects to
discontinue United States sales in the second guarter of 2005 primarily due to a
change in distribution strategy by new ownership of Nachtmann Crystal.

e publications International -~ for Enesco to sell a line of gift books and
stationery products to card and gift stores in the United States.

¢ Enchanted Accessories - for Enesco to sell a line of picture frames to the card
and gift stores in the United States.

e Enchanted Moments - for Enesco to sell a line of wedding accessories to the
card and gift stores in the United States.

For the United Kingdom, France and Canada, the Company has alsc entered into a number
of distribution arrangements, including Demdaco (resin figurines), About Face Designs
(glass figurines), Amorini (Italian charms & bracelets), selected Department 56 lines
and Franz Porcelain (vases).

Selected products developed by Enesco’s Canadian subsidiary are offered in United
States showrooms. These products are sold to customers in the United States through
Enesco’s Card & Gift channel sales force. During 2004 and 2003, respectively, sales
of these ©products resulted in approximately $3.0 million and $4.0 million
respectively, of consolidated net revenues.

Each year, Enesco undertakes a comprehensive review of all preducts being sold and
developed. Using an analysis based on profitability and management judgment, Enesco
retires certain SKU’s from its product lines where the potential for consumer demand
is low. Each year Enesco introduces new product offerings, on a selective basis, and
limits quentities of many items in the collectible lines. During 2005, Enesco plans
to execute a more rigorous review of products being marketed worldwide. Management’s
goal is to reduce the number of product SKU’'s sold to customers in the United States
by approximately 10% in order to better manage inventories with a focus on evolving
demand and interest levels.

Acquisitions

In February 2004, Enesco acquired Gregg Manufacturing, Inc. d/b/a Gregg Gift Company
(Gregg Gift) for $7.3 million. Gregg Gift 1is a United States-~based supplier and
distributor of giftware. Gregg Gift’s product line includes book covers, organizers,
tote bags, garden and home décor accessories that are distributed through Christian
retailers, mass market, catalogs, book shops and card and gift stores. During the
first quarter of 2005, Enesco began to integrate certain areas of Gregg Gift,
including wutilizing Enesco's field sales force to sell Gregg Gift's product to
independent card and gift retailers.

In March 2004, Enesco’s domestic $50.0 million credit facility was amended to add
term notes totaling $7.7 million for the purpose of funding the acquisition of Gregg
Gift. At the same time, Gregg Gift was added as a borrowing subsidiary under the
credit facility. Certain financial covenants relating to the credit facility were
modified, including measurements at the end of each quarter.

In July 2004, Enesco Limited acquired certain assets of Dartington Crystal Limited
(Dartington) for $7.0 million. Dartington is a United Kingdom-based designer and
manufacturer of uncut crystal. Dartington’s product line includes glassware, bowls,
vases, candleholders and giftware.




In 2004, certain administrative functions of Rilston & Battersea Enamels plc (B&B),
the April 2003 acquisition, were integrated into Enesco Limited, resulting in
annualized savings of approximately $0.3 million in 2004. Enesco paid approximately
$4.4 million in cash ($3.7 million net of acquired cash), which resulted in Enesco
recording $2.9% million of goodwill related to the purchase.

Markets

Enesco has a presence and competes in three major geographical areas that include the
United States, Europe and Canada. The United States accounts for approximately 59%,
Europe 30%, Canada 10% and rest of the world 1% of the 2004 consolidated net
revenues. Management expects this geographic mix to remain at these approximate
proportions in 2005. Europe is primarily the United Kingdom, Germany and France, the
rest of the world is Mexico and various other countries.

Markets

Rest of
World, 1%

Canada, 10%-

Euro: 30%
pe United

States, 59%

Customers

Enesco has approximately 40,000 customers worldwide,the Company’s core independent
gift retailers, national gift chains, mass merchants, military post exchanges, club
stores, home television shopping networks, florists, hospital gift shops, home décor
chains and independents, garden stores, Jjewelry and department stores and catalogues.
Some of the major customers during 2004 included: Avon, Army Air Force Exchange
Stores, Carlton Cards, CVS, Eckerds, K-Mart, Lowe’s, QVC, Shopko, Target, Walgreens,
and Wal-Mart. No single account represented more than 5% of 2004 consolidated net
revenues.

Sales and Marketing

United States

During 2004, Enesco operated under a channel and brand matrix structure. The matrix
was comprised of business or sales channels, supported by major brand groups. Each
channel business unit was responsible for securing new business and expanding sales
with existing customers, while improving profit margin and maintaining operating
goals. Each brand team was responsible for securing the right products and the right
price for a given channel. The channels and brands are ranked based on 2004 revenue:

Channels Brands
1) Card & Gift ) 1) Precious Moments
2) Mass & Chain Drug 2) Design Partners
3) Premier 3) Enesco Developed

4) Multi-level Marketing
5) Channel Expansion

6) Home & Garden

7) International Export
8) Other

Major Licenses
Strategic Partners
Other

Oy U o>




Channel Structure focuses on customers. Enesco’s top 2004 channel, Card & Gift, makes
up approximately 70% of United States revenues or approximately 40% of consolidated
net revenues.

During 2004, the Card & Gift channel utilized account-focused sales regions comprised
of approximately 200 field sales employees worldwide, including approximately 154
based throughout the United States. Smaller card and gift accounts in the United
States and those that are geographically remote, are handled by Enesco’s inside sales
account managers. These managers are trained 1in telephone sales to retailers,
including prospecting for new accounts and maintaining a ready line of communication
with accounts normally served by field sales. In addition, during 2004 Enesco
continued to utilize a team of sales executives to manage the larger, national
accounts.

Tc further strengthen the relationship with independent retailers, in 2004 Enesco

launched an innovative web-based program called "PowerChord." The program allows
consumers to shop on-line for the Company’s products through Enesco's website at
WWW.&Nnesco.com. The technology provides direct access to store locations,

facilitating consumer purchases from Enesco’s retailers and minimizing their need to
stock large inventories. Consumer traffic to www.enesco.com and the PowerChord area
of the website increased approximately 40% since launch, and Enesco expects more
retailers to participate in 2005, due to increased revenue volumes during the fourth
quarter of 2004.

During the first quarter of 2005, Enesco restructured its United States marketing and
sales organization areas to enhance effectiveness of these critical functions and to
organize its sales personnel based on whether or not their customers utilize
centralized buying versus buying at a single retail outlet. As a result, the Card &
Gift and Home & Garden field sales forces were combined in 2005.

Brand Structure focuses on intellectual property assets and the development of
strategic relationships and plans. Enesco’s top two 2004 brand categories, Precious
Moments end Design Partners, accounted for approximately 57% of the United States net
consolidated revenues or approximately 35% of consolidated net revenues.

During 2004, Precious Moments product lines were 33% of consolidated net revenues.
Design Partners licensed artists such as Jim Shore (Heartwood Creek), Julie Ueland,
Rosalind Walshe and Randy Ouzts product lines were 24% of consolidated net revenues.
Design Partners gives Enesco a constant stream of new product and design ideas.

Enesco also has other brand structures which include distribution arrangements for
the United States, lines developed by Enesco in-house artists including Foundations,
Circle of Love, Cherished Teddies, Blooming Wild, and Art of Nature. The Enesco
brands provide a strong and profitable core that is unaffected by license agreements.
Major licenses include the growing global alliance with the Walt Disney Company and
licensed programs with such lines as NASCAR, Bratz and Nickelodeon. These major
consumer brands combined with Enesco’s product development capability give these
lines geographic and channel breadth.

Enesco's 2005 marketing structure will focus on brand building, particularly for
Enesco developed lines, such as Foundations, Dartington in the United Kingdom, Gregg
Gift and 1lines of products, such as Heartwood Creek by Jim Shore. Enesco is
leveraging the talents of outside artists across a range of product categories and
price positions.

International

The United Kingdom, Canadian and French operations each have their own employee sales
organizations. Enesco also sells its products through distributors in approximately
25 ‘countries around the world. In addition to selling various Enesco-developed
product lines in the United Kingdom and several other European countries, Enesco
Limited, a subsidiary of Enesco Group, Inc., with 1its headquarters 1located in
Carlisle, Cumbria, England, oversees the operations of Enesco’s subsidiary located in
France and the sales forces in Germany, Holland and Belgium. Enesco Limited also
administers the collectors clubs that are based in Europe. The Company’s Canadian
subsidiary, N.C. Cameron, sells its various product lines in Canada and administers
the collectors clubs based in Canada.

International net revenues of $108.5 million in 2004 increased $16.9 million compared
to 2003 net revenues of $91.6 million, and comprised approximately 40% of the
Company’s sales in 2004, compared with approximately 36% in 2003 and 30% in 2002. Net
revenues increased approximately 18% in 2004 primarily due to the acquisition of
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Dartington ({approximately $7.0 million) and the favorable effect of the foreign
currency translation rates (approximately $9.7 million). Net revenues of $71.5
million were recorded in the United Kingdom in 2004 and increased approximately $16.0
million, or 29%, compared to $55.6 million in 2003 primarily due to the acquisitions
of Dartington of approximately $7.0 million and B&B, along with favorable foreign
currency translation impacts of approximately $7.0 million. Net revenues of $30.1
million were recorded in Canada in 2004 and decreased approximately $0.7 million, or
2%, compared to $30.8 million in 2003 primarily due to a decrease in Precious Moments
sales of $2.7 million Cherished Teddies of approximately $0.7 million offset by
increased sales of Other of $2.1 million and home décor of $0.6 million.

International Revenues

_ Rest of
World, 1%

; United
Kingdom, 66%

Programs

Marketing efforts arxe reinforced with retail or consumer promotional programs,
participation at trade and private shows held in major United States and foreign
cities, trade advertising, consumer preomotions and annual catalogs. Product lines are
displayed in eight showrooms located throughout the United States. Showrooms are also
located in each of Canada, England, France and Hong Kong. In addition, the Company
maintains an interactive consumer information website at www.enesco.com and maintains
toll-free telephone lines for retail customers and consumers. Enesco does not sell
direct to consumers, except through its collectors clubs in certain instances,

Enesco offers its retail customers various extended payment terms and special
programs, depending on sales volume and distribution requirements. These programs
extend the payment due date for products, providing the retailer the opportunity to
sell the item prior to paying Enesco. Enesco believes its general terms of sale are
competitive in the giftware industry.

Design

Enesco has a continuous product development program. The Company believes a factor
that is critical to its successes is the ability to design, produce and market new
products toc provide a competitive advantage in the gift, home and garden décor
industries. Revenue growth, in part, 1s dependent on Enesco’s ability to timely
respond to changing trends and to utilize design and production systems to bring new
products to market.

A newly structured preduct development process was implemented in early 2005 that
will impact all future product launches. The new process is intended to implement
efficiency in lead time cycle and ultimately in the productivity and success of
Enesco’s products at retail. This process clarifies artist and consumer driven ideas
through a series of gateways, filtering them based on differentiation, consumer
relevance, operational fit and economics. Those surviving products become the focus
for all development resources and are efficiently brought to market.




Production

The majority of Enesco’s consolidated net revenues are from products sourced from
independent manufacturers, with the Dbalance from Enesco-owned manufacturing
operatiens in the United Kingdom.

The products included in the Lilliput Lane, Border Fine Arts and Dartington lines are
supplied in part by manufacturing plants owned by Enesco's subsidiary operating in
the United Kingdom. During 2004, Enesco restructured one of its manufacturing plants
in the United Kingdom, shifting this production to its remaining United Kingdom sites

or to outsourced manufacturers in Asia. For Enesco’s other product lines production
by independent manufacturers occurs in the Far East and in the Philippines,
Indonesia, Thailand, Europe and Canada . Enesco’s subsidiary in Hong KXong, Enesco

International (H.K.) Limited, is inveolved in management of manufacturers production.
During 2004, Enesco purchased from its three largest contract manufacturers accounted
for approximately 14%, 12% and 8%, respectively, of its total purchases. During 2004,
approximately 70% of Enesco's total product purchases came from manufacturing sources
located in the People’'s Republic of China, which enjoys most-favored nation trade
status with the United States. Products are primarily sourced from Taiwan, Thailand,
Germany and Japan.

The Company’s ability to import products and thereby satisfy customer orders is
affected by the availability of, and demand for, guality production capacity abroad.
The Company competes with other importers of specialty giftware products for the
limited number of foreign manufacturing sources that can produce detailed, high-
quality products at affordable prices. Foreign manufacturing and procurement of
imports is subject to the following inherent risks: labor, economic and political
instability; cost and capacity fluctuations and delays in transportation, dockage and
materials handling; restrictive actions by governments; nationalizations; the laws
and policies of the United States affecting importation of goods (including duties,
guota and taxes); international political/military/terrxorists developments; and
foreign trade and tax laws. Moreover, the Company cannot predict what relevant
political, legal or regulatory changes may occur, or the type or amount of any
financial impact on the Company such changes may have in the future.

Significant to Enesco 1is its ability to continue to conduct business with vendors
located in China, which is continually subject to political uncertainties, the
financial impact of which the Company is unable to estimate. To the extent China may
have its exports or transaction of business with United States persons subject to
political retaliation, the cost of Chinese imports could increase significantly
and/or the ability to import goods from China may be materially impaired. In such an
event, there could be a material adverse effect on the Company until alternative
arrangements for the manufacture of its products were obtained on economic,
production and operational terms at least as favorable as those currently in effect.

Enesco’'s Vendor Certification Program requires all manufacturing sources, whether
affiliates or contract manufacturers, to agree to, and comply with, gquality
compliance and labor standards established and enforced by Enesco and certain of its
licensors.

Enesco has been certified by the Office of United States Customs and Border
Protection as a member of the Customs Trade Partnership Against Terrorism (CTPAT).
The Department of Homeland Security instituted CTPAT as a means to identify low risk
importers and allow the free flow of goods even under heightened security conditions.
Enesco’'s certification is strategically important since it may reduce the risk of
significant delays in the importation of its product. Also, Enesco's certification
will permit Enesco to become, or continue to be, a vendor for certain United States
customers who require CTPAT certification as a condition to conducting business.

Distribution

In order to serve customers in the United States, Canada and certain international
locationg, product is shipped by ocean freight from abroad and then by rail or truck
to Enesco’s main warehouse and distribution facility, located in Elk Grove Village,
Illinois. This warehouse facility also serves as Enesco’s primary distribution
facility and main showroom. Enesco alsc uses third-party warehouse and distribution
facilities in: Fort Mills, South Carclina, to handle the distribution of certain
product to mass merchants; and Fenton, Missouri, to handle warehouse and distribution
of the Walt Disney Classic Collection in the United States. Shipments from Enesco to
its customers are handled by United Parcel Service and other commercial carriers
(allowing for contingency plans and removing 100% dependence on one main service].
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Enesco's subsidiaries in the United Kingdom and Canada have distribution facilities
to service their operations. Enesco Limited's main distribution facility is located
in Carlisle, England, and it utilizes small distribution facilities in Wolverhampton,
England, for the Halcyon Days product line and Torrington, England for the Dartington
line. ‘

Enesco experienced transitional and learning curve problems that caused distribution
disruptions in the United States related to implementing an ERP system beginning in
January 2004. The disruption related to order processing and shipping from Enesco's
main warehouse and distribution facility in Elk Grove Village, 1Illinois. These
inefficiencies and the efforts to resolve them resulted in higher than normal IT
consulting, depreciation and customer service expenses in 2004, estimated at 511
million, and delayed or lost revenues which adversely impacted the Company’s
financial results. Also, during 2004, Enesco was not able to ship all of its open
orders in the United States on a timely basis. Given that Enesco continues to
experience distribution difficulties related to its ERP system implementation, the
decision was made in December 2004 to revert to the core components of the former
legacy software systems in 2005. Enesco is also planning to upgrade certain modules
of the legacy software system to provide advanced features and capabilities required
by the business. Enesco expects all the changes to be completed by the third quarter
of 2005.

Seascnality and Net Open Orders

In addition to Enesco’s home décor, garden and everyday gift products, the Company
produces specially designed product for holiday seasons, including Christmas,
Valentine’s Day, Easter, Mother’'s Day, Father’s Day, Halloween and Thanksgiving.
Quarterly revenues are influenced by the shipment o©of seasonal merchandise.
Historically, revenues will peak in the third quarter of each year.

At the end of 2004, Enesco had net open orders of approximately $26.0 million,
compared to approximately $17.0 million at the end of 2003, or a 56% increase. The
increase is primarily due to distribution disruptions related to its United States
ERP system. It is standard practice in the giftware industry, however, that orders
are subject to amendment or cancellation prior to shipment for wvarious reasons,
including credit considerations and product availability. Due to the many external
factors that can impact the status of unshipped orders at any particular time, the
comparison of open orders in any given year with those at the same date in a prior
year 1s not necessarily indicative of prospective sales results in future years.
Management expects improvement in this area as Enesco reverts to its previous legacy
systems, with enhancements. The transition is expected to be completed in the third
quarter of 2005. Year-end 2004 open orders are scheduled to be shipped during early
2005. The Company has incurred cancelled orders for a number of reasons, primarily
due to customer credit considerations and logistics issues from the ERP system
implementation.

Competition

Competition is strong in the giftware, collectibles and decorative accent industries
in the United States, Canada, United Kingdom and Europe. The competition is highly
fragmented among a number of companies and product categories. The principal factors
affecting success in the marketplace are originality of product design, quality,
price, sales coverage, marketing ability, 1logistics and sourcing. Enesco's main
competitors in the United States are Hallmark, Department 56, Lladro, Boyd’s Bears,
and Russ Berrie, among others. No one competitor is dominant.

Trademarks and Other Intellectual Property

The intellectual property rights associated with Enesco's licensed product lines are
materially important to the Company’s revenues, particularly the Precious Moments,
and Heartwood Creek by Jim Shore lines, which accounted for approximately 22% and
13%, respectively, of Enesco's consolidated net revenues during 2004, compared to 33%
and 5%, respectively, for 2003, and 37% and 1% for 2002. The Precious Moments license
currently has a term through December 31, 2007, and the Heartwood Creek by Jim Shore
license currently has a term through December 31, 2012. No later than September 30,
2005, Enesco and Precious Moments, Inc. will determine whether to terminate their
license, renew the license on the same terms currently in effect, or negotiate
different terms.
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= Heartwood Creek
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Enesco continuously enters intc and renews, license agreements relating to
trademarks, copyrights, designs and products, which enable the Company to market new
items compatible with its existing product lines to refresh its product offerings for
changing consumer preferences and to reduce the risk of dependency on one line.
Enesco’s licenses are either non-exclusive or exclusive for specific products in
specified channels and territories. Royalties are paid on licensed items and, in some
cases, advance royalties or minimum guarantees are required by agreements.

Protection of all of Enesco's intellectual property, whether owned or licensed, 1is
important to its business. The Company maintains an aggressive and visible program to
identify and challenge companies and individuals worldwide who infringe upon its
registered trademarks and copyrighted designs.

Enesco owns 317 trademark registrations. The registrations for the Company’s
trademarks are currently scheduled to expire worldwide at various times starting in
2005, but can be maintained and renewed provided that the trademarks are still in use
for the goods covered by such registration. Enesco has historically renewed its
registered trademarks and expects to continue to renew them as business needs
require. The extensions will vary based on the specific trademarks.

Employees and Related Matters

As of December 31, 2004, Enesco employed 1,510 employees worldwide, 644 of whom are in
the United States. Enesco's United States-based warehouse personnel are represented by
Local Union No. 781 of the International Brotherhood of Teamsters under a contract
that expires on June 30, 2007, and includes 166 union member employees. Enesco
believes that its labor relations are good. As of December 31, 2004, Enesco's foreign
subsidiaries employed 866 persons. The Dartington factory employees of Enesco Limited
are represented by the General Municipal and Boilermakers Union in the United Kingdom
under a contract that expires on December 31, 2005. During 2004, Enesco did not incur
any work stoppages.

In the first quarter of 2005, Enesco restructured its United States sales and
marketing departments, resulting in the elimination of 35 positions. The annual
savings are expected to be approximately $2.0 million. The related severance costs of
approximately $500,000 will be recorded in the first quarter of 2005. Enesco expects
to continue to monitor employee-related expenses and identify opportunities based on
business operating plans.

Environmental

Enesco is subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulations governing
the use, discharge and disposal of hazardous material. Compliance with current laws
and regulations has not had and is not expected to have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s financial cendition. It is possible, however, that environmental issues
may arise in the future that Enesco cannot currently predict.
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Available Information

The Company makes available, without charge, copies of its Proxy Statement, Annual
Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, any
amendments to those reports filed by Enesco with the SEC and any other of its reports
filed with or furnished to the SEC on or through the Investor Relations section of the
Company’s website, www.enesco.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after they are
filed. You may request a paper copy of materials the Company files with the SEC by
writing to Investor Relations, 225 Windsor Drive, Itasca, Illinois 60143 or calling
Enesco at (630} 875-5300.

In addition, the following policies and corporate governance documents are available
at the Investor Relations section of the Company’s website: Enesco Corporate
Governance Guidelines, Enesco Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, applicable to all
directors and employees, Audit Committee Charter, Human Rescurce and Compensation
Committee Charter, and Nominating and Governance Committee Charter. Copies of these
documents are also available, free of charge, by calling (630) 875-5300 or by sending
a request in writing to Investor Relations, 225 Windsor Drive, Itasca, Illinois 60143.

You also may read and copy materials Enesco files with the SEC at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549. You may obtain
information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-
SEC-~0330. Our filings with the SEC are also available to you on the SEC’s Internet web

site at www.sec.gov.

Information on our website is not incorporated into this Form 10-K or the Company's
other securities filings and is not a part of them.

Financial and Other Information

Information required by this item is set forth in the sections entitled "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” beginning on
page 18 of this Form 10-K, and "Notes to Conscolidated Financial Statements" beginning
on page 36 of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

The following chart summarizes the material real estate holdings of Enesco worldwide:

Location Description Owned/Leased Sg. Ft. Lease Term
Elk Grove Village, IL Warehouse, Leased 485,500 Dec. 2009
Usa Distribution & main

showroom
Itasca, IL, USa Headquarters office Owned 101,580 N/A
West Chicago, IL, USA Warehouse Leased 78,230 May 2005
Mississauga, Ontario, Warehouse, Leased 101,000 Dec. 2007
Canada Distribution,

showroom & offices
Carlisle, Cumbria, Warehouse, Leased 48,500 Dec. 2013
England Distribution,

showroom
Carlisle, Cumbria Warehouse Leased 35,000 Dec. 2013
England
Carlisle, Cumbria Cffices Leased 11,500 Sept. 2005
England
Skirsgill, Penrith Manufacturing Leased 20,000 Dec. 2008
England
Skirsgill, Penrith Manufacturing and Leased 13,500 Sept. 2005
England offices
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Langholm, Dunfrieshire Manufacturing and Owned 25,000 N/A

England offices
Workington, Manufacturing and Owned 25,000 N/a
England Qffices
Torrington, Devon Manufacturing and Owned 90,000 N/A
England retail space on

6.2

acres
Villeneuve Loubet, Warehouse, Leased 55,972 Dec. 2006
France Distribution

showroom & offices

Management in the United States is in pursuit of real estate options relevant to the
headquarters office, including the possible sale of the building and/or a sale lease
back, in pursuit of a lower facility cost. The Company also leases showrooms in eight
major market locations in the United States and one in Hong Kong for the marketing
and sale of products. The facilities of Enesco are adeguate, suitable and of
sufficient capacity to support Enesco’s current operations.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

In the ordinary course of Enescc's business, there have arisen various legal
proceedings pending against Enescc and its subsidiaries. While the Company cannot
predict the eventual outcome of these proceedings, it believes that none of these
proceedings will have a material adverse impact upon the consolidated financial
statements of Enesco.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

NONE.

ITEM 4A. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Enesco executive officers, theilr respective ages and positions as of March 1, 2005,
and a description of their business experience is set forth below. There are no
family relationships among any of the executive officers.

Date First

Name Bge Positions Elected

Cynthia Passmore-

McLaughlin 42 President and Chief Executive Officer 1/15/05
Director

Ms. Passmore-McLaughlin began serving as President of Enesco in October 2004, and
was named President and CEO and jocined the Board of Directors, on January 15, 2005.
Pricr to Ms. Passmore-Mclaughlin joining Enesco, she was Senior Vice President of
Customer Marketing and Retall Design for Revlon, Inc. (cosmetics and beauty products)
from April 2002 until February 2004. Prior to that, she served as Senior Vice
President, Customer Business Management North America for Revlon, Inc. from April
2001 until April 2003. From March 1999 until April 2003, she was general manager of
Revlon Canada and from January 1986 until March 1999 she was regional Vice President
Marketing for Europe, Eastern Europe and the Middle East. She also held prior
positions with Clairol and Procter & Gamble.

Paula E. Manley 51 Chief Financial Officer 1/24/05

Prior to Ms. Manley joining Enesco, she was the Chief Financial Officer of Follett
Higher Education Group, the country’s largest outsource provider of college
boockstores from November 2000 until January 2005. From 1999 to 2000, she was Chief
Financial Officer of Einstein Noah Bagel Corporation, one of the largest chains of
bagel shops in the U.S. and Vice President of Operations Finance/Controller from 1998
until 1999.
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Jeffrey S. Smith 48 Chief Operating Officer 038/06/01

Mr. 8Smith previocusly served as Senior Vice President, Sales and Marketing from
February 2003 until November 2004, and Senior Vice President, Operations of Enesco
from September 2001 until February 2003. Prior to Mr. Smith joining Enesco in June
2001, he was the Vice President of Supply Chain from 1997 until June 2001, at Rauch
Industries, a manufacturer and distributor of Christmas merchandise, and a division
of Syratech Corporation. From 1994 to 1997, he was Vice President of Operations of
Ambrosia Industries, a manufacturer and marketer of glass giftware. Before joining
Ambrosia, Mr. Smith held numerous positions with Anchor Hocking Co., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Newell Rubbermaid, Inc.

Josette V. Goldberg 47 Senior Vice President, Human
Resources and Administration 1/17/01

Ms. Goldberg previously served as Senior Vice President, Human Resources from
January 2000 until January 2001, and Vice President of Human Resources of Enesco from
June 1999 until January 2000. Prior to Ms. Goldberg joining Enesco in February 1998,
she was the Vice President of Human Resources for Household Finance Corporation, a
consumer finance division of Household International, from 1996 to 1998. Previously,
she spent 11 years with Balcor Company, a real estate and property management
division of American Express where she held the position of Senior Vice President of
Human Resources and Administration.

M. Frances Durden 48 Vice President, General Counsel, 3/01/01
Secretary

Ms. Durden previously served as Corporate Counsel of Enesco from January 1999 until
February 2001. Prior to Ms. Durden joining Enesco in January 1999, she served as
Senior Vice President and General Counsel of Michael Anthony Jewelers, Inc. in Mt.
Vernon, New York, a jewelry company from 1994 to January, 1999. Previously, she
practiced corporate law with an Ohio law firm. Ms. Durden’s employment at the
Company will end on April 1, 2005.

Charles E. Sanders 56 Treasurer 2/28/01

Mr. Sanders previously served as Assistant Treasurer of Enesco from February 2001

until May 2004. Prior to Mr. Sanders joining Enesco in December 2000, he served in
various positions, including Vice President, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary, with
RDM Sports Group, Inc., or its predecessors in Atlanta, GA., a manufacturer and

distributor of fitness equipment, selected toy products and other selected
recreational products from 1971 to 2000.

NOTE: All officers are elected for the ensuing year and until their successors are
duly elected and qualified.
PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS.

Market Information

Enesco Group, Inc.'s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange and
Pacific Exchange (symbol: ENC). The following sets forth, for the indicated periods,
the high and low sales price for Enesco’s common stock as reported on the New York
Stock Exchange.

2004 2003
Market Price Market Price
Quarter Dividend High Low High Low
First $ - $11.98 $9.40 $7.60 $6.45
Second - 14.94 8.50 9.00 7.01
Third - 8.94 €.36 8.84 7.00
Fourth - 8.15 6.05 11.00 8.00

As of March 21, 2005, there were 2,239 record holders of the Common Stock.




$16.00
$14.00
$12.00
$10.00
$8.00
$6.00
$4.00
$2.00
$0.00

Market Information

2004 High
m 2004 Low
m 2003 High
m 2003 Low

First Second Third Fourth

Enesco did
agreement

not declare any dividends in 2004 or 2003. The Company’s revolving credit
contains financial and operating covenants, including restrictions on

repurchasing Enesco shares and paying dividends.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCTAL DATA.

(In thousands, except per share 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
amounts)

Net revenues $ 268,967 $ 256,426 $ 262,330 $ 275,294 $ 333,031
Cost of sales 162,423 140,714 151,264 167,358 191,269
Gross profit $ 106,544 $ 115,712 $ 111,066 $ 107,936 $ 141,762
Selling, general and administrative

expenses 126,252 99,796 97,296 115,534 132,675
Sale of building (gain) (3,985) - - - -
Amortization of goodwill - - - 1,950 2,658
Operating profit (loss) (15,723) 15,916 13,770 (9,548) 6,429
Interest expense (1,148) (787) (747) (1,523) (3,196)
Interest income 404 537 286 371 1,161
Other income (expense), net (1,366) (1,334) (1,533) (1,342) 759
Income (loss) before income taxes

and cumulative effect of a change

in accounting principle (17,833) 14,332 11,776 (12,042) 5,153
Income tax benefit (expense) (27,355) 2,950 8,897 13,153 9,939
Income (loss) before cumulative

effect of a change in accounting

principle (45,188) 17,282 20,673 1,111 15,092
Cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle, net of income

taxes - - (29,031) - -
Net income {(loss) § (45,188) $ 17,282 § (8,358} $ 1,111 § 15,082
Earnings (Loss) per Common Share:

Basic:

Income (loss) before cumulative

effect of a change in accounting

principle $ (3.16) S 1.23  $ 1.49 S 0.08 § 1.11
Cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle, net of tax $ - $ - $ (2.08) § - $ -
Net income (loss) $ (3.16) S 1.23  $ (0.60) $ 0.08 § 1.11
Diluted:

Income (loss) before cumulative

effect of a change in accounting

principle $ (3.16) $ 1.20 $ 1.47 $ 0.08 § 1.11
Cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle, net of tax $ - $ - $ (2.08) s - $ -
Net income {(loss) $ (3.16) $ 1.20 $ (0.60) § 0.08 3§ 1.11
(In thousands, except per share 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
amounts) I In— —_—
Average shares of common stock -

basic 14,309 14,028 13,854 13,708 13,562
Average shares of common stock -

diluted 14,821 14,444 14,110 13,836 13,636
Shares of common stock cutstanding

at year end 14,557 14,164 13,909 13,769 13,612
Balance sheet data (December 31)

Capital expenditures $ 4,552 § 5,918 § 4,284 § 2,729 § 4,794
Depreciation and amortization $ 7,111 $ 5,236 § 5,014 $ 5,071 $ 5,948
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Working capital $ 79,995 § 94,351 § 76,099 § 54,389 § 58,931
Total assets $ 193,883 § 202,468 § 179,785 $ 219,551 § 231,479
Totél_lpng—term liabilities. $ 9,838 § 3,551 § 3,79% $ 8,938 $ 11,562
Shareholders' equity $ 109,267 § 147,239 § 121,913 § 126,377 § 125,693
Return on average shareholders' (35%) 13% (7%) 1% 13%

equity

See footnotes in Five-Year Financial Highlights on page 55-56.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATION.

Enesco Group, Inc.

The following discussion provides more depth on the financial condition and results
of operaticns of Enesco and its subsidiaries. This discussion should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements and the accompanying notes included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K. It contains forward-looking statements based on the
Company’s current expectations, which are inherently subject to risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of certain events may differ
significantiy from those referred to in such forward-looking statements. The Company
undertakes no obligation beyond what is required under applicable securities law to
publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement to reflect current or future
events or circumstances, including those set forth in the section entitled
“Cautionary Factors That May Affect Future Results” and elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Results of Operations Overview

The year 2004 provided both challenges and opportunities for the Company:

. In January, the Company began the unsuccessful implementation of a new ERP
system for the United States operations which adversely affected the timely
delivery of product, inventory levels, sales and operating results. In
December, the Company decided to abandon this $7.1 million capital investment
by mid 2005.

e On February 29, 2004, the Company acquired Gregg Gift, a California-based
manufacturer, for $7.3 million in cash. Gregg Gift manufactures and distributes
branded and specialty giftware that includes book covers, organizers, tote bags
and home décor accents targeting the growing inspirational marketplace. For
the year ended December 31, 2004, Gregg Gift contributed approximately $7.2
million to consolidated net revenues.

U In April 2004, the CEC and President of Enesco, Daniel DalleMolle, passed away
unexpectedly. Tom Bradley, the current CFO was named interim CEO. George
Ditomassi, a board member was named interim CEO replacing Tom Bradley, who then
left Enesco, in August 2004. Cynthia Passmore~McLaughlin joined Enesco in
October as President and in January 2005 was appointed Chief Executive Officer
succeeding Mr. Ditomassi.

e On July 21, 2004, the Company acquired certain of the assets of Dartington
through its United Kingdom subsidiary, Enesco Limited, for $7.0 million in
cash. The purchase price was funded by internally generated cash from Enesco
Limited. Dartington designs and manufactures a full range of uncut crystal
products, such as glassware, bowls, vases, candleholders and giftware. For the
year ended December 31, 2004, Dartington contributed approximately $6.8 million
to consolidated net revenues.

. On December 17, 2004, the Board of Directors determined the ERP system would be
stabilized by using the core components of its former legacy software systems.
There are plans to upgrade certain modules of the legacy software to provide
advanced features and capabilities required by the business. Enesco incurred
accelerated depreciation charges related to the ERP system of approximately
$1.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2004, and will include approximately $5.0
million more during the first six months of 2005. These charges are related to
the expected disceontinuance of the use of the current ERP system. The costs
expected related to the implementation and enhancements to be between $1-2
million, and the Company anticipates the changes to be completed in the third
guarter of 2005,
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s For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company incurred a significant . net
loss compared to the prior year. The loss is due primarily to a $18.6 million
non-cash provision to establish a valuation allowance with respect to deferred
tax assets related to the uncertainty regarding their future realization and an
additional non-cash provision of $17.4 million of deferred taxes on unremitted
earnings of foreign subsidiaries due to the planned guarantee in 2005 of the
Company’s debt. The Company also incurred approximately $5.0 million of costs
related to the ERP system implementation inefficiencies in labor, freight and
distribution. In addition, the Company incurred higher SG&A primarily due to
ERP related expenditures of approximately $6.0 million, the impact of the
change in foreign exchange rates, severance, Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
compliance and acquisition related costs.

e The Company saw significant sales growth in Heartwood Creek by Jim Shore in
2004, offset mainly by the decline in sales of Precious Moments. The decline
had a significant effect on the 2004 operating results.

Critical Accounting Policies -

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make Jjudgments, assumptions and estimates that affect the amounts
reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying notes. Estimates
are used for, but not limited to, the accounting for allowances for doubtful accounts
and sales returns, inventory valuations, impairments of tangible and intangible
assets, and other special charges and taxes. Actual results could differ from these
estimates. When preparing an estimate the Company determines what factors are most
likely to affect the estimate. The Company gathers information inside and outside the
organization. The information is evaluated and the estimate is made.

The following are the critical accounting policies that management believes could
have a significant impact on the financial statements if these judgments, assumptions
and estimates used by management turn out to ke incorrect. In addition, management
has discussed these critical accounting policies with Enesco’s Audit Committee.

Accounts Receivable Allowances -

Doubtful Accounts - Allowances are based on Enesco’s assessment of the collectability
of specific customer accounts and the historical write-off percentage applied to
outstanding accounts receivable. If there is deterioration in a major customer’s
credit worthiness or actual defaults are significantly different than Enesco’s
historical experience, due to changes in the business environment or other factors,
estimates of the recoverability of amounts due could be affected. There are two
parts to this reserve. The first is a general reserve which 1is calculated by
applying the historical write-off percentage to outstanding accounts receivable at
period end. This percentage is adjusted yearly to reflect actual experience. At
December 31, 2004, this component of the reserve was $1.6 million. The second
component of the reserve is for specific accounts where management has determined the
collectability of the account is questionable. At December 31, 2004, this comprised
$2.1 million of the reserve balance. The total Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
balance at December 31, 2004, was $3.7 million which is 5% of accounts receivable.

Sales Returns - This reserve is based on historical trends and has twc components.
The first 1is a general reserve which is calculated by applying the historical
percentage of sales return for the year. This percentage 1is adjusted yearly to
reflect actual experience. At December 31, 2004, this component of the reserve was
$0.6 million. The second component of the reserve is for specific accounts where the
customer has taken a deduction or has similarly challenged an invoice and management
believes it is likely the claim will be accepted by the company. At December 31,
2004, this comprised $1.2 million of the reserve balance. The total Allowance for
Sales Returns balance at December 31, 2004, was $1.8 million which is 3% of accounts
receivable.

Inventory Reserves -

Excess/Slow Moving Inventory - At month end, perpetual inventory balances by SKU are
compared to unit revenue information for the most recent 12 months revenues history,
and any excess 1s identified.

19




The portion of inventory determined tc be excess is reserved at approximately 30% of
cost in order to state that inventory at the lower of cost or market. An entry is made
each month to adjust the inventory reserve to the required balance. Historical trends
are verified on a yearly basis to confirm the average selling price of excess
inventory, which in 2004 was approximately 30% below cost.

At December 31, 2004, the inventory reserve balance was approximately $9.0 million
which was 12% of gross inventory.

Inventory Shrinkage -~ A reserve is established in anticipation of an inventory shrink
during the year leading up to the time when the company takes its physical inventory.

This reserve 1is cleared at year end as part of the year-end physical inventory
process. During 2004, the quarterly provision for this reserve was approximately $0.9
million for each of the first three quarters. Management expects to reserve at a
lower level in 2005 due to improved operating controls.

Impairments of Tangible and Intangible Assets -~

Enesco assesses the recoverability of significant tangible and intangible assets,
including goodwill, under Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement Nos.
142 - “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” and 144 - “Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” For property, plant and equipment, we evaluate the
recoverability of these assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicates
that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. For goodwill, The
Company performs an annual impairment assessment (or more frequently if impairment
indicators arise).

In assessing the fair value of goodwill and assessing the recoverability of the
carrying value of property, plant and equipment, management has mocdels that are based
on estimates of future operating results and related cash flows.

During December 2004, the Company changed the useful life of the ERP system from seven
years to seven months, resulting in additional depreciation of approximately $0.9
million i December of 2004.

Tax Accruals -

Accruals have been established for taxes payable and potential tax assessments. The
accruals are included in current income taxes payable since it is uncertain as to when
assessments may be made and paid. Enesco has filed and continues to file tax returns
with a number of taxing authorities worldwide. While Enesco believes such filings
have been and are in compliance with applicable laws, regulations and interpretations,
positions taken are subject to challenge by the taxing authorities often for an
extended number of years after the filing dates. To the extent accruals differ from
assessments, when the open tax years are closed or the accruals are otherwise deemed
unnecessary at a point in time, the accruals are adjusted through the provision for
income taxes.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2004 Compéred to 2003 Consolidated Results:

. Percent of Net Revenues
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended Decembar 31,

(In thousands) 4 2004 4 2003 ¥ 2004 v 2003

Net revenues $ 268,967 S 256,426 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales 162,423 140,714 60.4% 54.9%
Gross profit 106,544 115,712 39.6% 45.1%
Selling, general and

administrative expenses ‘ 126,252 99,796 ’ 46.9% 38.9%
Sale of building (gain) (3,985) - r (1.5%) -
Operating profit (loss) $ (15,723) $ 15,916 r (5.8%) 6.2%
Interest expense (1,148) (787) r (0.4%) 7 (0.3%)
Interest income 404 537 0.2% 0.2%
Other non-operating income L4 L4

(expense), net (1,366) (1,334) (0.5%) (0.5%)
Income (loss) before income v

taxes (17,833) 14,332 (6.6%) 5.6%
Income tax benefit (expense) (27,355) 2,950 d (10.2%) 1.2%
Net income (loss) $ (45,188) $ 17,282 r (16.8%) 6.7%

2004 COMPARED to 2003 CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Net revenues in 2004 of $269.0 million increased $12.6 million, or 5% above the 2003
level of $256.4 million. The increase was primarily due to current year acgquisitions
of Gregg Gift and Dartington of $14.0 million, successes among newer product lines
such as Heartwood Creek by Jim Shore of approximately $22.0 million and Walt Disney
Art Classics of approximately $8.0 million, and favorable foreign currency
translation rate impacts of approximately $9.7 million. Those revenue increases were
partially offset by declining revenues for Precious Moments of approximately $28.0
million and Cherished Teddies of approximately $7.0 million. The remaining decline of
approximately $6.0 million resulted from lower revenues in several smaller product
lines such as Growing up Birthday Girls, John Deere and Mary’s Moo Moos.

United States net revenues in 2004 of $160.5 million decreased $4.3 million, or 3%
below the 2003 level of $164.8 million. The decrease is primarily due to lower
collectible market revenues from Precious Moments of $24.8 million, down 32%, and
Cherished Teddies of $4.8 million, down 40%, $6.1 million from lower revenues in
several smaller product lines such as Growing up Birthday Girls, John Deere and
Mary’s Moo Moos and lower mass market promotional revenues of $2.3 million and
closeout revenues of $2.6 million. These decreases were partially offset by increased
revenues from acquisitions and newer product line’s, such as Heartwood Creek by Jim
Shore of approximately $21.0 million and the Walt Disney Art Classics license of
approximately $8 million. The acquisition of Gregg Gift provided revenues of $7.2
million during the ten months owned by Enesco. The United States revenue represented
59% of total revenues in 2004 compared to 64% of total revenues in 2003. This
decrease of 5% is primarily due to Precious Moments and Cherished Teddies revenue
declines which more than offset revenue increases from acquisitions, new product
lines in 2004 versus 2003, and increased international revenue.

International net revenues in 2004 of $108.5 million increased $16.9 million, or 18%
above the 2003 level of $91.6 million. The increase is primarily due to $6.8 million
increased revenues from the Dartington acquisition in July 2004, sales of newer
product lines, such as Heartwood Creek by Jim Shore of approximately $2.0 million,
smaller product lines of approximately $3.3 million and the favorable effect of
changes in foreign currency translation rates of $9.7 million. These increases were

offset by declines in Precious Moments of $2.7 million and Cherished Teddies of $2.2
million.
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International net revenues represented 41% of consolidated revenues in 2004 compared
to 36% in 2003. This increase of 5% is primarily due to local currency revenues which
were translated into United States dollars at higher exchange rates in 2004 versus
2003 and the acquisition of Dartington. ’

Precious Moments net revenues in 2004 of $55.7 million decreased $27.5 million versus
2003. Precious Moments revenues represented 22% of consolidated net revenues in 2004
compared to 33% in 2003. This decrease was primarily due to continued lower consumer
demand for collectible figurines.

Cherished Teddies net revenues in 2004 of $12.6 million decreased $7.0 million versus
2003. Cherished Teddies revenues represented 5% of consolidated net revenues in 2004
compared to 8% in 2003. This decrease was primarily due to continued decline in
consumer demand for collectible figurines.

The number of collector club members in 2004 for Precious Moments and Cherished
Teddies decreased by approximately 20% as compared to the decrease of 21% from 2002
to 2003, primarily due to lower consumer interest in collectible figurines in 2004
versus 2003. Collector clubs provided approximately 2% of consolidated revenue in
2004 compared to approximately 3% in 2003. In 2004, Enesco acquired the Walt Disney
Classic Collection collector club which added over 28,000 active members in 2004.

Heartwood Creek by Jim Shore revenues in 2004 of $34.5 million increased $22.6
million above 2003. The nearly two-fold increase is primarily due to higher customer
demand for home décor and large-scale figural products, and the added international
demand of approximately $2.0 million. Heartwood Creek by Jim Shore revenues
represented 13% of consolidated net revenues in 2004 compared to 5% in 2003.

The licensing acquisition of Walt Disney Art Classics provided revenues of $7.8
million in 2004.

Net revenues of newer product lines in 2004, such as Heartwocd Creek by Jim Shore,
Bratz, Walt Disney Classics Collection and My Little Kitchen Fairies, accounted for
approximately 18% of consolidated revenue in 2004 as compared to approximately 6% of
consolidated revenue in 2003.

Gross profit in 2004 of $106.5 million decreased $9.2 million, or 8%, below the 2003
level of $115.7 million. The decrease was primarily due to ERP system implementation
difficulties, inventory valuation charges, higher freight costs and changes in the
overall product mix. Additionally, incremental gross profit from the Gregg Gift and
Dartington acquisitions, the new Walt Disney Classics Collection and Heartwood Creek
by Jim Shore product lines, and the favorable impact of foreign currency translation
rates are partially offset by a volume-related decline in gross profit caused by
lower product revenue of collectible figurines lines, Precious Moments and Cherished
Teddies. The gross profit margin expressed as a percentage of net revenues was 39.6%
in 2004, compared to 45.1% in 2003.

SG&A in 2004 of $126.3 million increased $26.5 million, 27% above the 2003 level of
$99.8 million. The increase is primarily due to the normal operating expenses from
the Walt Disney Classic Collection license acquisitions, Dartington and Gregg Gift
acquisitions, and the of approximately $9.6 million, the impact of foreign currency
translation rate changes of approximately $3.5 million, and unplanned costs related
to the ERP and system implementation of approximately $5.0 million. Additional costs
were incurred in 2004 for marketing efforts for the Precious Moments brands of
approximately $1.0 million, Sarbanes-Cxley Act of 2002 compliance of approximately
$1.0 million, former executives’ and international severance of approximately $2.3
million, strategic studies of $0.6 million and depreciation on the ERP system of
approximately $1.6 million.

In 2004, there was a gain recorded on the sale of the Elk Grove Village warehouse of
approximately $4.0 million.
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The operating loss of .$15.7 million in 2004 compares to operating profit in 2003 of
$15.9 million. The decrease in profit is primarily due to lower sales of Precious
Moments and Cherished Teddies having an unfavorable impact on earnings @ of
approximately $25.0 million, offset by improved operating income of approximately
$14.0 million, primarily due to newer product lines, such as Heartwood Creek by Jim
Shore and the acguisitions of the Walt Disney Classics Collection license, Gregg Gift
and Dartington. Additionally, the operating loss was increased by ERP-related charges
of approximately $11.0 million, higher inventory wvaluation charges of approximately
$2.0 million, and increased SG&A as described above, offset by the gain on the sale
of the Elk Grove building. Geographically, the United States 2004 operating loss of
$24.3 million decreased $29.6 million below the income level in 2003 of $5.3 million.
International 2004 operating income of $6.8 million reflected a $3.8 million
decrease, or 36% below 2003 operating income of $10.6 million.

Interest Expense and Interest Income

Interest expense in 2004 of $1.1 million increased $0.4 million, or 46% above the
2003 level of $0.8 million. The increase is primarily due to higher borrowings and
higher interest rates. Interest income in 2004 of $0.4 million decreased $0.1
million, or 25% from the 2003 level ¢f $0.5 million. The decrease was primarily due
to lower cash balances available for investments during 2004.

Other Non-Operating Income and Expense

Other expense in 2004 of $1.4 million compared to an expense of $1.3 million in 2003.

Provisions for Income Taxes

Income tax expense in 2004 of $27.4 million compared to a tax benefit of $3.0 million
in 2003. In each year, income tax expense (benefit) varies substantially from the
amount of income tax expense (benefit) that would be expected by applying the United
States federal income tax rate to income (loss) before income taxes; a reconciliation
of these amounts is presented in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. 1In
both 2004 and 2003, variances exist between the expected and actual tax expense
(benefit) due to the federal deduction for state income taxes, tax rate differences
between federal and foreign tax rates, non-deductible expenses, and, in 2003, for
changes in accruals for tax assessments. In 2004 a variance alsc exists due to the
Company establishing a valuation allowance of $18.6 million with respect to its net
deferred tax asset and the recording of a deferred tax liability of $17.4 million on
unrenitted earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries that are expected to be
guarantors of the parent’s debt in 2005. The parent created an additional net
operating loss of $24.6 million in 2004 that did not provide any tax benefit.

Open Oxders

Net open orders at December 31, 2004 of approximately $26.0 million increased 53% over
the December 31, 2003 level of approximately $17.0 million. The increase is primarily
due to higher demand in the United States for new product lines, the effect of
acquisitions and unshipped orders resulting from the ERP system implementation issues
and fulfillment difficulties. The ERP issues are being addressed by the decision to
return to functioning legacy software systems with certain upgrades to provide
features and capabilities needed by the Dbusiness. Open orders consist of orders
received and approved by Enesco, subject to <cancellation for various reasons,
including credit considerations and product availability.

2003 COMPARED to 2002 CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Net revenues in 2003 of $256.4 million decreased $5.9 million, or 2% below the 2002
level of $262.3 million. The decrease was primarily due to lower product revenues in
the United States, which were partially offset by higher International revenues.

United States net revenues in 2003 of $164.8 million decreased 519.5 million, or 11%
below the 2002 level of $184.3 million. The decrease was primarily due to lower mass
market promotional revenues and lower collectible market revenues of the Precious
Moments and Cherished Teddies product lines. The decreases were partially offset by
positive customer responses to the newer product lines, such as Heartwood Creek by Jim
Shore, Foundations and My Little Kitchen Fairies. ©Net United States revenues
represented 64% of total revenues in 2003 compared to 70% of total revenues in 2002.
This decrease is primarily due to foreign currency revenues which were translated into
United States dollars at lower exchange rates in 2003 versus 2002.
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International net revenues in 2003 of $91.6 million increased $13.6 million, or 17%
above the 2002 level of $78.0 million. The increase was primarily due to revenues from
the April 2003 acquisition of B&B and the impact of changes in foreign currency
translation rates. Net International revenues represented approximately 36% of total
revenues in 2003, compared to 30% in 2002. This increase was primarily due to local
currency revenues which were translated into United States dollars at higher exchange
rates in 2003 versus 2002. If the 2003 local currency revenues were translated into
United States dollars at the 2002 exchange rates, International revenues would have
been lower by approximately $9.0 million in 2003.

Precious Moments net product line revenues in 2003 of $83.2 million decreased $14.0
million, or 14% below the 2002 level of $97.2 million. The decrease was primarily due
to customer demand and foreign currency revenues which were translated into United
States dollars at lower exchange rates in 2003 versus 2002. Precious Moments revenues
represented 32% of total revenues in 2003 compared to 37% in 2002. This decrease was
primarily due to lower market driven demand for collector items in 2003 versus 2002.

Cherished Teddies net product line revenues in 2003 of $19.6 million decreased $7.9
million, or 29% below the 2002 level of $27.6 million. The decrease was primarily due
to customer demand and foreign currency revenues which were translated into United
States dollars at lower exchange rates in 2003 versus 2002. Cherished Teddies revenues
represented 8% of total revenues in 2003 compared to 11% in 2002. This decrease was
primarily duve to lower market driven demand for collector items in 2003 versus 2002.

The number of collector club members in 2003 for Precious Moments and Cherished
Teddies decreased by approximately 21% above the 2002 level primarily due to lower
market driven demand for collector items in 2003 versus 2002.

Net revenues of newer product lines in 2003, such as Heartwood Creek by Jim Shore,
Foundations, Children of the Inner Light and My Little Kitchen Fairies, accounted for
approximately 11% of total revenues in 2003 as compared to approximately 2% of total
2002 revenues. The increase was primarily due to the 2003 revenues improvement related
to the United States of approximately $10.0 million versus 2002.

Net open orders in 2003 of approximately $17.0 million decreased $2.0 million, below
the 2002 level, or 12%. Backlog consists of orders received and approved by Enesco,
subject to cancellation for various reasons, including credit considerations, product
availability and customer requests. The decrease in backlog was primarily due to
timing of product introductions, variability in retailer order cycles, economic
conditions, demonstrated ability to reduce order lead times and continued
consclidation in the collectible market, Gross profit in 2003 of $115.7 million
increased $4.6 million, or 4% above the 2002 level of $111.1 million. The increase was
primarily due to the impact of changes in foreign currency translation rates, improved
customer/product mix, better procurement/inventory management and lower royalty costs
negotiated with certain licensors. Additionally, incremental gross profit from the B&B
acquisition partially offset a volume-related decline in gross profit caused by lower
preduct revenues in the United States. The gross profit margin expressed as a
percentage of revenues was 45% in 2003, compared to a 42% in 2002.

SG&A in 2003 of $99.8 million increased $2.5 million, or 3% above the 2002 level of
$97.3 million. The increase was primarily due to the impact of changes in foreign
currency translation rates, which added approximately $3.0 million to SG&A in 2003,
and the addition of B&B, which added approximately $2.0 million to SG&A. Spending
reductions in Enesco’s United States and European entities of approximately $2.0
million helped to keep the overall SG&A increase to only 3%. The spending reductions
were achieved through reduced headcount, lower catalog printing and tradeshow costs,
as well as lower depreciation expense.

Operating profit in 2003 of $15.% million increased $2.1 million, or 16% above the
profit level in 2002 of $13.8 million. The increase in profit was primarily due to
higher SG&A expenses of $2.5 million or 3% in 2003 versus 2002. Geographically, the
United States 2003 operating income of $5.3 million increased $0.4 million, or 8%
above the 2002 level of $4.9 million. International 2003 operating income of $10.6
million reflected a $1.7 million increase, or 20% above 2002 operating income of $8.8
million. This increase was primarily due to lower cost of sales of 7%, offset by
higher SG&A of 3% and lower revenues of 2% in 2003 versus 2002.




Interest Expense and Interest Income

Interest expense of $0.8 million for 2003 was 5% higher than 2002 primarily due to
interest expense related to an Illinois income tax audit settlement in the second
quarter of 20C3. Excluding the settlement, interest expense would have been $0.4
million lower than 2002 interest expense due to lower average borrowings and lower
interest rates. Interest income for 2003 of $0.5 million was $0.3 million higher than
in 2002 due to interest income from an Illinois income tax refund and higher invested
cash balances during 2003.

Other Non-Operating Income and Expense-

Other expense in 2003 of $1.3 million compared to an expense of $1.5 million in 2002.
The decrease in expense was primarily due to $0.2 million of lower non-operating
spending.

Provisions for Income Taxes

The 2003 tax provision includes a $6.8 million benefit, related to prior year tax

accruals, which were no longer required. The 2003 effective tax rate (excluding the
$6.8 million benefit) was 27.2% compared to 34.2% in 2002 (excluding a $12.9 million
benefit). The difference from the effective tax rate for 2002 reflects the

geographical mix of earnings. The effective tax rate differs from the United States
statutory rate primarily due to the varying tax rates of foreign jurisdictions.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents in 2004 were $14.6 million versus $10.6 million in 2003.
Operating cash flows are a function of Enesco’s earnings plus non-cash expenses, such
as depreciation, and its ability to manage working capital. The year-over-year net
increase in cash used by operating activities of $18.9 million was due primarily to
lower net earnings of approximately $62.5 million, offset by an increase in non-cash
charges of approximately $25.8 million for deferred tax items and $1.9 million for
depreciation, and an approximate $19.9% million reduction in increased working capital
compenents. 2004 results also included higher net gains on the sale of capital assets
of approximately $4.0 million.

Net cash provided by investing activities in. 2004 was $0.3 million versus a cash use
of $9.6 million in 2003. In 2004, proceeds of $19.8 million from the sale of the Elk
Grove Village warehouse offset expenditures related to the computer hardware and
software purchases of $4.6 million and the acquisitions of Gregg Gift and Dartington
for an aggregate of $14.4 million of cash in 2004. In 2003, proceeds from the of
capital assets was de minimis against expenditures of $5.9 million for plant and
equipment and $3.7 million to acguire B&B.

Net cash provided by financing activities in 2004 was $25.5 million versus §4.3
million in 2003. The major sources of cash from 2004 financing activities was from
increased borrowing of $22.7 million under credit facilities, common stock issuance
of $1.3 million, and exercise of stock options and 401K stock grants of $1.6 million.
Enesco did not declare any dividends in 2004. Future dividends and resumption of the
stock repurchase program will depend on future financial results. No outstanding
common shares were purchased in 2004 or 2003. Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements provides a detailed summary of Treasury Stock activity. Enesco has an
authorized program to purchase shares of its common stock depending on market and
business conditions, and may utilize available funds for this purpose in the future,
subject to restrictions in a credit facility. As of December 31, 2004, authorization
to purchase one million shares remained available under the program.

Enesco has historically satisfied its capital requirements with borrowings and in
2004 proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment. Cash balances and
working capital requirements fluctuate due to operating results, shipping cycles,
accounts receivable collections, inventory management and timing of payments, among
other factors. Working capital requirements fluctuate during the year and are
generally greatest early in the fourth quarter and lowest early in the first quarter.

Tax returns have been filed, and will continue to be filed, with a number of taxing
authorities worldwide. Filings have been, and are in compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and interpretations, positions taken are subject to challenge by the
taxing authorities often for an extended number of years after the filing dates.
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Enesco has established accruals for potential tax assessments. These accruals are
included in current income taxes payable since it is uncertain as to when assessments
may be made and paid. Based upon Enesco’s current liquid asset position and credit
facilities, Enesco believes it has adequate resources to fund any such assessments.
To the extent accruals differ from actual assessments, when the open tax years are
closed or the accruals are otherwise deemed unnecessary at a point in time, the
accruals are adjusted through the provision for income taxes.

Enesco has various non-qualified supplemental retirement plans. Benefits from these
plans will be paid from Enesco’s assets. During 2004 and 2003, $0.1 million and $0.1
million, respectively, were paid to fund benefits. Enesco has established grantor
trusts to provide assets for some of these non-qualified plans. The assets are
subject to the claims of creditors and therefore, are not considered plan assets and
are excluded from retirement plan computations.

In June 2003, Enesco entered into a new three year domestic $50.0 million unsecured
revolving credit facility that includes Enesco International (H.K.) Limited as a
borrowing subsidiary. The credit agreement contains financial and operating
covenants including restrictions on incurring indebtedness and liens, acquisitions,
selling property, repurchasing the Company’s shares and paying dividends. In
addition, Enesco was required to satisfy fixed charge coverage ratio and leverage
ratio tests at the end of the second, third and fourth quarters and a minimum annual
operating profit covenant.

In March 2004, Enesco’s domestic $50.0 million credit facility was amended to add
term notes totaling $7.7 million for the purpose of funding the acquisition of Gregg
Gift. At the same time, Gregg Gift was added as a borrowing subsidiary and certain
financial covenants were modified.

In August 2004, Enesco negotiated a $10.0 million temporary increase through December
31, 2004 to its $57.7 million credit facility (to a total of $67.7 million) in order
to meet anticipated seascnal requirements for working capital. Following December
31, 2004, the credit facility reverted back to $57.7 million.

In November 2004, Enesco and its lenders agreed to, on or before November 22, 2004,
agree upon revised financial covenants for the fiscal period ending December 31, 2004
and thereafter. Also in November 2004, Enesco entered into an amendment to its
credit facility providing a security interest in certain assets to its lenders.

On December 10, 2004, Enesco sold its warehouse and distribution facility at 2200 South
Busse Road, Elk Grove Village, Illinois for approximately $20 million. The net
proceeds from the sale of $17.6 million were first used to pay the outstanding balance
($6.7 million) of the $7.7 million term locan. The balance of the net proceeds, $10.9
million, was used to reduce the outstanding balance of the revolving portion of the
credit facility with a concurrent reduction to the revolving loan commitments. Also on
December 10, 2004, Enesco’s lenders extended the time period to January 31, 2005 for
Enesco and its lenders to agree on revised financial covenants for the fiscal period
ending December 31, 2004 and thereafter.

As of December 31, 2004, after giving effect to the reductions to the credit facility
related to the sale of the warehouse and distribution facility, the total credit
facility was $49.1 million.

On January 28, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with its lenders to its
domestic credit facility providing credit facility commitments of $45.0 million until
February 28, 2005 and $56.0 million until March 31, 2005. The lenders also waived
the resetting of, and compliance with, financial covenants as of December 31, 2004.
Also on January 28, 2005, the term of the domestic credit facility was shortened to
end March 31, 2005.

On March 28, 2005, Enesco signed a commitment letter (the “Commitment”) with Fleet
Capital Corporation, operating as Bank of America Business Credit (“BABC”), for BABC
to fully underwrite a $100 million global senior revolving credit facility with a
five year term (the “Senior Credit Facility”). Banc of America Securities LLC
("BAS”) expects to form a. syndicate of financial institutions to participate in the
proposed Senior Credit Facility. In the event that the proposed Senior Credit
Facility cannot be successfully syndicated under the terms outlined in the Commitment
and related summary of terms and conditions (the "“Term Sheet”), Enesco agrees that
BABC and BAS shall be entitled, in consultation with Enesco, with certain
limitations, to change the pricing, structure and other terms of the proposed Senior
Credit Facility if BABC and BAS determine that such changes are necessary to ensure a
successful syndication. Under the proposed Senior Credit Facility, Enesco will be
the borrower and its material domestic and foreign subsidiaries will be guarantors.
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The proposed Senior Credit Facility will be secured by substantially all of the
assets of Enesco and its material domestic and foreign subsidiaries. The proposed
Senior Credit Facility will contain standard terms and conditions, including
financial and other covenants, including, without 1limitation, restrictions on
incurring indebtedness and liens, acquisitions, selling property, repurchasing
Enesco’s shares and paying dividends. The Commitment is subject to the satisfaction
of several conditions in a manner acceptable to BABC and BAS in their reasonable
discretion: (a) each of the terms and conditions set forth in the Commitment and
Term Sheet; {(b) the absence of a material breach of any representation, warranty or
agreement of Enesco set forth in the Commitment; (c¢) BABC’'s and BAS’ satisfaction
that priocr to and during the syndication of the Senior Credit Facility there shall be
no competing offering, placement or arrangement of any debt securities or bank
financing by or on behalf of Enesco or any of its subsidiaries (except that Enesco is
permitted to pursue an extension and amendment to its existing domestic credit
facility referred to above); (d) the negotiation, execution and delivery of
definitive documentation for the Senior Credit Facility consistent with the Term
Sheet and otherwise satisfactory to BABC and BAS and (e) BABC and BAS not becoming
aware after the date of the Commitment of any information or other matter which in
BABC’s or BAS’ judgment is inconsistent in a material and adverse manner with any
information or other matter disclosed to BABC and BAS prior to the date of the
Commitment with respect to Enesco and its subsidiaries, their respective businesses
or financial condition, or the transactions contemplated in connection with the
Senior Credit Facility. Enesco expects to close on the proposed Senior Credit
Facility on or before April 30, 2005.

On March 29, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with its lenders to its domestic
credit facility, effective March 31, 2005, extending the term of such facility
through January 1, 2006. The credit facility commitments range from $50 million to
$70 million, based on Enesco’s seasonal borrowing needs. The amendment also sets
certain financial covenants for 2005. In the event that the outstanding loans under
the domestic credit facility are not repaid in full: (i) by May 16, 2005, a fee in
the amount of $700,000 will become payable, (ii) by June 30, 2005, another fee of
$700,000 will become payable, and (iii) with proceeds provided by lenders that
include Fleet WNational Bank or an affiliate of Fleet WNaticonal Bank, a fee of
$1,750,000 will become payable. Enescc plans to use borrowings under a new global
credit facility described in the following paragraph to payoff the loans under its
existing credit facility.

The Company believes that our current cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from
operations, and available financing will satisfy our expected working capital needs,
capital exnpenditures and other liguidity reguirements associated with our existing

operations. Also, in the course of pursuing growth opportunities, including but not
limited to acquisitions and alliances, Enesco may need to negotiate additional or
amend existing credit facilities. In addition, there are no transactions,

arrangements or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons, as
of December 31, 2004, that are reasonably likely to materially affect liquidity or
reguirements for capital resources.

At December 31, 2004, Enesco had formal and informal unused lines of credit of
approximately $42.0 million. The informal lines are bank lines that have no commitment
fees. As of December 31, 2004, Enesco had $26.4 million of interest bearing debt
outstanding.

Fluctuations in the value of the United States dollar versus internaticnal currencies
affect the United States dollar translation value of international currency
dencminated balance sheet items. The changes in the balance sheet dollar values due to
internatiocnal currency translation fluctuations are recorded as a component of
shareholders’ equity.
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Contractual Obligations

A summary of significant contractual obligations are as follows (in millions):

Less than After
Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
{amounts in millions)
Short-Term Borrowings $26.4 $26.3 $0.0 $0.0 $0.0
Letters of Credit 4.1 3.9 .0 0.0 0.0
Operating Leases 25.0 6.4 13.4 3.7 1.6
License Guarantees 45.7 15.5 30.5 0.0 0.0
Total Contractual Cash Obligations $101.2 $52.1 $43.9 $3.7 $1.6

|
Enesco’s &redit agreement and real estate lease and 1license agreement include a
provision that in the event of default the obligator may accelerate the amount owed
within the agreement in certain circumstances.

Sale and Lease Back

On December 10, 2004, Enesco sold its warehouse and distribution facility, land and
certain pieces of machinery and equipment located in Elk Grove Village for
approximately $19.8 million. Enesco is leasing back the facility, machinery and
equipment 'for a five-year term. The arrangement includes an option to renew for an
additional five years and an early termination provision. The assets sold had a net
book value of $6.6 million on December 10, 2004. This transaction resulted in Enesco
recording a $4.0 million gain on the sale of fixed assets in December 2004. The
remaining gain of $8.6 million will be recognized over the five-year term of the lease
($1.7 million annually). As a result of the sale of the building, Enesco will incur an
estimated $1.9 million of annual rent expense in 2005. The rent expense will be
coffset by recognition of the deferred gain.

Market Risk

Concentration of risk for Enesco exists in revenue from major product lines, foreign
sources of inventory, market and geographic areas and trade receivables. The majority
of product revenues are items produced using licensed rights from third parties. The
two largest licensed 1lines, Precious Moments and Heartwood Creek by Jim Shore
represented approximately, $90.0 million or 34% of total revenues for 2004, and $95.1
million or 37% of total revenues for 2003, and $99.5 million or 38% of total revenues
for 2002, respectively. Extended credit terms are offered to customers. Enesco
continually monitors and manages the risks associated with all these activities.

Enesco conducts business globally. Accordingly, the Company’s future results could be
materially affected by a wvariety of uncontrollable and changing factors including,
among others, foreign currency exchange rates; regulatory, political or economic
conditions in a specific country or region; trade protection measures and other
regulatory requirements; and shipping disruptions due to war or terrorist activities,
natural disasters or other factors. Any or all of these factors could have a material
impact on our future results.

As a global concern, Enesco faces exposure to movements in foreign currency exchange
rates and interest rates. These exposures may change over time and could have a
material impact on the Company’s financial results and cash flows. Historically,
Enesco’s primary foreign currency exposures have related to non-dollar-denominated
transactions in Canada and Europe, as well as dollar denominated inventory purchases
by our International operating units. Enesco only enters into transactions with
established counterparties having investment grade ratings within a diversified group
of financial institutions.




At the present time, Enescc hedges only those currency exposures associated with
certain assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and periodically will
hedge anticipated foreign currency cash flows. The hedging activity undertaken by
Enesco 1s intended to offset the impact of currency fluctuations on certain foreign
currency transactions. To manage foreign currency risk, as of December 31, 2004,
Enesco had entered into a forward exchange agreement with a notional value of $6.2
million to mature within five days. This contract was a sale of British pounds
sterling and a purchase of United States dollars at an average exchange rate of $1.92.
The fair value of the contract was not significant. As of December 31, 2004, Enesco
had a total of $26.4 million of interest Dbearing debt outstanding with a floating
interest rate of approximately 4%. Debt at year—end in the United States was $24.9
million at an interest rate of 4.3% and outside the United States, debt at year end of
$1.5 million at an interest rate of 2.7%, compared to an aggregate debt balance of
$2.9 million with a floating interest rate of 2.1% at December 31, 2003 all in the
United States.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2004, the FASB issued FAS No. 151 Inventory Costs. This Statement is
effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2005, Earlier application is permitted for inventory costs incurred during fiscal
years beginning after November 24, 2004. The provisions of this Statement should be
applied prospectively. This Statement amends the guidance in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4,
"Inventory Pricing,” to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle facility
expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage). Paragraph 5 of ARB

43, Chapter 4, previously stated that ". . . under some circumstances, items such as
idle facility expense, excessive spoilage, double freight, and rehandling costs may be
so abnormal as to require treatment as current period charges. . . ." This Statement

requires that those items be recognized as current-period charges regardless of
whether they meet the criterion ¢f "so abnormal.” In addition, this Statement requires
that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on
the normal capacity of the production facilities. Management expects to adopt this
pronouncement for inventory costs in 2006, the impact of which if any has yet to be
determined.

In December 2004, FASB revised FASB Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation. This Statement supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees, and its related implementation guidance. This Statement
establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges
its equity instruments for goods or services. It also addresses transactions in which
an entity incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or services that are based on the
fair value of the entity’s equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance
of those equity instruments. This Statement focuses primarily on accounting for
transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment
transactions. This Statement does not change the accounting guidance for share-based
payment transactions with parties other than employees provided in Statement 123 as
originally issued and EITF Issue No. 96~18, “Accounting for Equity Instruments That
Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling,
Goods or Services.” This Statement does not address the accounting for employee share
ownership plans, which are subject to AICPA Statement of Position 93-6, Employers’
Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership Plans. This Statement is effective as of the
beginning of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15,
2005. This revised Statement will be applicable for Enesco’s yearly service awards;
granted after the required effective date and modified, repurchased or cancelled after
that date.
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SCHEDULE - CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Enesce Group, Inc.
Decempber 31, 2004 and 2003

ASSETS
(In thousands)
2004 2003

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,646 $ 10, 645
Accounts receivable, net 70,526 65,180
Inventories 65,371 60,820
Prepaid expenses 3,310 4,114
Deferred income taxes and taxes receivable 920 5,146
Total current assets 154,773 145,915
Property, Flant and Equipment, at Cost:
Land and improvements 1,200 3,710
Buildings and improvements 22,131 37,525
Machinery and equipment 10,273 10,326
Office furniture and equipment : 37,454 33,250
Transportation egquipment 796 795

71,854 85, 606
Less - accumulated depreciation and amortization (49,345) (57,265)
Property, plant and equipment, net 22,509 28,341
Other Assets:
Goodwill 9,403 2,890
Other 4,116 1,458
Deferred income taxes 3,082 23,864
Total other assets ‘ 16,601 28,212

$ 193,883 $ 202,468

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In thousands)

2004 2003
Current Liabilities:
Notes and loans payable $ 26,354 $ 2,858
Accounts payable 18,680 21,723
Federal, state and foreign income taxes 6,405 7,375
Deferred gain on sale of fixed assets 1,711 -
Accrued expenses -

Payrcll and commissions 2,599 4,812

Royalties 12,267 7,735

Post-retirement benefits 2,029 1,375

Other 4,733 5,686
Total current liabilities 74,778 51,564
Long-Term Liabilities:

Notes payable - 9
Post-retirement benefits 3,008 3,248
Deferred income taxes - 294
Deferred gain on sale of fixed assets 6,830 -
Total long-term liabilities 9,838 3,551
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 8)

Minority interest - 114
Shareholders' Equity:

Common stock, par value $.125:

Authorized 80,000 shares;

Issued 25,228 shares 3,154 3,154
Capital in excess of par value 44,229 45,863
Retained earnings 302,462 347,650
Accumulated other comprehensive income 8,152 3,740

357,997 400,407
Less - Shares held in treasury, at cost:
Common stock, 10,671 shares in 2004 and 11,064 shares in (248,730) (253,168)
Total shareholders' equity 109,267 147,239

$ 193,883 $ 202,468
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SCHEDULE - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2004 2003 2002

Net revenues $ 268,967 $ 256,426 $ 262,330
Cost of sales 162,423 140,714 151,264
Gross profit $ 106,544 $115,712 $ 111,066
Selling, general and adﬁinistrative expenses 126,252 99,796 97,296
Sale of building (gain) (3,985) - -
Total selling, distribution, general and administrative
expenses 122,267 99,796 97,296
Operating profit (loss) (15,723) 15,916 13,770
Interest expense (1,148) (787) (747}
Interest income 404 537 286
Other income (expense), net (1,366) (1,334) (1,533
Income (loss) before income taxes and cumulative

effect of a change in accounting principle (17,833) 14,332 11,776
Income tax (expense) benefit (27,355) 2,950 8,897
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in accou (45,188) 17,282 20,673
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net - - (29,031
Net income (loss) $ (45,188) $ 17,282 $ (8,358
Earnings (Loss) per Common Share:
Basic:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in acc § (3.16) 5 1.23 3 1.49

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, ne § - 3 - $ (2.09

Net income (loss) $ (3.16) $ 1.23 S (0.60
Diluted:

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of a change in acc § (3.16) $ 1.20 $ 1.47

Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, ne $ - $ - $ (2.09

Net income (loss) $ (3.16) S 1.20 3 {0.60

The accompanying notes

32

are an integral part of these financial statements.




SCHEDULE - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS

Enesco Group, Inc.
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

(In thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Balance, beginning cf year $ 347,650 $ 330,368 $ 338,726
Net income (loss) (45,188) 17,282 (8,358)
Balance, end of year $ 302,462 $ 347,650 $ 330,368
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Enesco Group, Inc.

For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

(In thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Net income (loss) $ (45,188) $ 17,282 ¢ (8,358)
Other comprehensive income:

Cumulative translation adjustments . 4,412 6,452 3,010
Total other comprehensive income 4,412 6,452 3,010
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (40,776) S 23,734 $ (5,348)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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SCHEDULE -~ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS COF CASH FLOWS

Enesco Group, Inc.
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

(In thousands) 2004 2003 2002
Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) $(45,188) s 17,282 (8,358)
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle, net of taxes - - 29,031
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net
cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property,
plant and equipment 7,111 5,236 5,014
Deferred income taxes 24,557 (801) 1,872
(Gains) losses on sale of capital assets ( 4,014) 5 12
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Bccounts receivable (965) (7,108) 5,141
Inventories 585 (9,401 9,070
Prepaid expenses 1,134 (1,2386) 203
Other assets (1,156) 956 1,125
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (3,539) (1,090) (11,081)
Federal, state and foreign income taxes (1,077) (7,953) (13,166)
Long-term post-retirement benefits (313) 156 (626)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (22 ,865) (3,954) 18,237
Investing Activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (4,552) (5,918) (4,284)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired {14,408) (3,732) -
equipment 19,265 37 39
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 304 (9,613) (4,185)
Financing Activities:
Net issuance (repayment) of notes and loans payable 22,656 2,677 (6,858)
Exercise of stock options 1,553 588 176
Other common stock issuance 1,252 1,004 708
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 25,461 4,269 (5,974)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents 1,101 2,525 1,408
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,001 (6,773) 9,486
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 10,645 17,418 7,932
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $14,646 $ 10,645 $ 17,418

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2004, 2003 and 20062

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Enesco
Group, Inc. and subsidiaries (“Enesco”). All significant intercompany transactions
have been eliminated in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The preparation of
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires the use of management estimates. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Certain reclassifications have been made in the
2003 and 2002 financial statements to conform to the 2004 presentation, including
club revenues and club cost of goods so0ld reclassified from selling, distribution,
general and administrative expenses. Enesco, which operates in a single industry
segment, designs, manufactures (primarily through third parties located in the
Pacific Rim) and markets a wide variety of licensed and proprietary branded gifts and
collectibles to retailers primarily throughout the United States, Canada, Europe and
Asia.

Assets and liabilities of Enesco’s foreign subsidiaries are translated into U.S.
dollars at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date, while statements of
operations items are translated at average exchange rates effective during the year.
Translation gains and losses are reported as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity. Transaction gains and losses are
reported in the consolidated statements of operations.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents and notes and loans payable
approximate fair wvalue. Enesco considers all highly liquid securities, including
certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less when purchased, to be
cash equivalents.

Advertising costs are expensed in the year incurred. Advertising expense was $1.6
million in 2004, $0.7 million in 2003, and $0.5 million in 2002.

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of products when evidence of an
arrangement exists, title and risk of loss transfers to the customers, prices are
fixed and determinable, and it is reasonably assured the related accounts receivable
is collectable. Enesco’s sales terms primarily are FOB shipping point for shipping
terms. The Company’s products are sold with normal and customary return provisions.
Sales discounts are deducted immediately from the sales invoice. Provisions, which
are recorded as a reduction of revenue, are made for the estimated cost of rebates
and promotional programs. License and royalty fees received by Enesco are recognized
as revenue when earned. Club revenue is recognized when club kits are sold to
consumers. '

Concentration of risk for Enesco exists in revenue from major product lines, foreign
sources of inventory, market and geographic areas and trade receivables. The majority
of product revenues are derived from items produced using licensed rights from third
parties. The two largest licensed lines, Precious Moments and Heartwood Creek by Jim
Shore represented approximately, $90 million or 34% of total revenues for 2004, and
$95.1 million oxr 37% of total revenues for 2003, and $99.5 million or 38% of total
revenues for 2002, respectively. Extended credit terms are offered to customers.
Enesco continually monitors and manages the risks associated with all these
activities.

Accounts receivable are reported net of allowances for uncollectible accounts and
returns and allowances which totaled $5.5 million at December 31, 2004, and $4.6
million at December 31, 2003.

On January 1, 2002, Enesco adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“FAS 1427). In accordance with FAS 142,
Enesco ceased amortizing goodwill upon adoption.

The adoption of FAS 142 also required the performance of a goodwill impairment test
as of January 1, 2002. The test for goodwill impairment involved a two step process.
The first step, which was completed in the second quarter of 2002, compared the fair
value of each reporting unit to its carrying amount. The second step was completed
in the third quarter of 2002. Since the fair value of each reporting unit was less
than its carrying amount, the amount of the impairment loss was measured by comparing
the implied fair value of goodwill to its carrying amount. Since the carrying amount
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of goodwill at each reporting unit exceeded its implied fair wvalue, an impairment

loss egqual to that excess was recorded. The total goodwill carrying value of $33.4
million was determined to be fully impaired. As of January 1, 2002, a charge of
$29.0 million was reccrded as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting
principle, net of income tax benefits of $4.4 million, in the Statement of Operations
for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Enesco assesses the recoverability of significant tangible and intangible assets,
including goodwill, under Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement Nos.
142 - “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” and 144 - “Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” For property, plant and equipment, we evaluate the
recoverability of these assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicates

that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. For goodwill, The
Company performs an annual impairment assessment (or more frequently if impairment
indicators arise). In assessing the fair wvalue of goodwill and assessing the

recoverability of the carrying value of property, plant and equipment, management has
models that are based on estimates of future operating results and related cash flows.

Certain items in the 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial stafements have been
reclassified to conform with the 2004 presentations. Enesco reclassified revenue and

expenses associlated with club sales from SG&A to revenues and cost of sales. As a
result, revenues increased $6.6 million, $7.4 million, and $8.5 million in 2004, 2003,
and 2002, respectively. Cost of sales increased by $3.5 million, $3.9 million, and

$4.6 million, respectively. SG&A increased by $3.1 million, $3.5 million, and $3.9
million, respectively.

buring December 2004, the Company changed the useful life of the ERP system from seven
years to seven months, resulting in additional depreciation of $0.9 million in
December of 2004.

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost components include labor,
manufacturing overhead and amounts paid to suppliers of materials and products, as
well as freight and duty costs to import the products. Enesco values all inventories
utilizing the first-in, first-out method. Enesco records inventory at the date of
taking title, which at certain times during the year results in significant in-transit
quantities, as inventory is sourced primarily from China, Taiwan, Thailand, Germany
and Japan.

The major classes of inventories were as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003
Raw materials $ 1,820 s 898
Work in process 250 342
Finished goods in transit 6,097 5,904
Finished goods 57,204 53,676

$ 65,371 3 60,820

Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful 1lives of the assets utilizing
straight-lire. and declining balance methods. The methods of depreciation for
financial statement and income tax purposes differ in some circumstances, resulting
in deferred income taxes.

The estimated useful lives of the various classes of assets are:

Range in
Years

Land improvements 10 - 15
Buildings and improvements 15 - 40
Machinery and equipment 5 - 12
Office furniture and equipment 5 - 10
Transportation equipment 3 -8
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Deferred tax assets and liazbilities are recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to the difference between financial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and theilr respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets
are also recognized for the tax effects attributable to the carryforward of net
operating losses (NOLs). Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assts and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income
in the period that includes the enactment date. The Company considers future taxable
income and ongoing tax strategies in assessing the need for a valuation allowance in
relation to deferred tax assets. The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce
deferred tax assets to a level where they are more likely than not to be realized
based upon these considerations.

Enesco has established accruals for taxes payable and potential tax assessments. The
accruals are included in current income taxes payable since it is uncertain as to
when assessments may be made and taxes may be paid. Enesco has filed and continues
to file tax returns with a number of taxing authorities worldwide. While Enesco
believes such filings have been and are 1in compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and interpretations, positions taken are subject to challenge by the
taxing authorities, often for an extended number cf years after the filing dates. To
the extent accruals differ from assessments, when the open tax years are closed or
the accruals are otherwise deemed unnecessary at a point in time, the accruals are
adjusted through the provision for income taxes.

Basic earnings per common share are based on the average number of common shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per common share, assumes in addition
to the above, the dilutive effect of common share equivalents during the year. Common
share equivalents represent dilutive stock options and warrants using the treasury
stock method. The number of shares used in the earnings per common share computation
for 2004, 2003 and 2002 were as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
Basic:
Average common shares outstanding 14,309 14,028 13,854
Diluted:
Stock options and warrants 512 416 256
Average shares - diluted 14,821 14,444 14,110

Additional opticns to purchase 1.3 million, 1.0 million and 1.4 million shares were
outstanding at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, but were not included
in the computation of diluted earnings per share because the options’ exercise price
was greater than the average market price c¢f the common share.

At December 31, 2004, the Company has three stock-based employee and twe non-employee
director compensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 4, Shareholders’
Equity. In addition, from time to time Enesco has issued stock options outside of the
plans as an employment inducement. The shares will be issued from treasury stock.
The Company accounts for those plans under the recognition and measurement provisions
of APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related
interpretations. No stock-based employee compensation cost 1s reflected in net
income, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the
market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant. The following table
illustrates the effect on net income {(loss) and earnings (loss) pex share if the
Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation, to stock-based employee compensation (in thousands).
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Year Ended December 31

2004 2003 2002
Net income (loss) as reported $ (45,188) S 17,282 S (8,358)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation
expense included in reported net
income, net of related tax effects - - -
Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined under
fair value based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects (2,329) (1,382) (1,206)
Pro forma net income (loss) $ (47,517) s 15,900 $ (9,564)
Earnings (loss) per share:
As reported:
Basic $ (3.16) 3 1.23 $ (0.60)
Diluted $ (3.16) $ 1.20 $ (0.60)
Pro forma:
Basic $ (3.32) 3 1.13 3 (0.69)
Diluted $ (3.32) $ 1.14 $ (0.69)

2. Notes and Loans Payable:

Notes and loans payable and weighted-average interest rates at December 31,
2004 and 2003 were as follows (in thousands): ‘

2004 2003
Interest Interest
Balance Rate Balance Rate
U.S. notes under committed bank lines § 24,857 4.3% $ 2,858 2.1%
International notes under committed
bank lines $ 1,497 2.7% $ - 0.0%
$ 26,354 $ 2,858

At December 31, 2004 Enesco had formal and informal unused lines of credit of
approximately $30.5 million. The informal 1lines are bank lines that have no
commitment fees. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, Enesco had $26.4 million and $2.9
million, respectively of interest bearing debt.

Total interest paid under committed bank lines was $0.7 million in 2004, $0.4 million
in 2003, and $0.8 million in 2002, respectively.

In June 2003, Enesco entered into a new three year domestic $50.0 million unsecured
revolving credit facility that includes Enesco International (H.K.) Limited as a
borrowing subsidiary. The credit agreement contains financial and operating
covenants including restrictions on incurring indebtedness and liens, acguisitions,
selling property, repurchasing the Company’s shares and paying dividends. In
addition, Enesco was required to satisfy fixed charge coverage ratio and leverage
ratio tests at the end of the second, third and fourth quarters and a minimum annual
operating profit covenant.

In March 2004, Enesco’s domestic $50.0 million credit facility was amended to add
term notes totaling $7.7 million for the purpose of funding the acquisition of Gregg
Gift. At the same time, Gregg Gift was added as a borrowing subsidiary and certain
financial covenants were modified.
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In August 2004, Enesco negotiated a $10.0 million temporary increase through December
31, 2004 to its $57.7 million credit facility (to a total of $67.7 million) in order
to meet anticipated seasonal requirements for working capital. Following December
31, 2004, the credit facility reverted back to $57.7 million.

In November 2004, Enesco and its lenders agreed to, on or before November 22, 2004,
agree upon revised financial covenants for the fiscal period ending December 31, 2004
and thereafter. Also in November 2004, Enesco entered into an amendment to its
credit facility providing a security interest in certain assets to its lenders.

On December 10, 2004, Enesco sold its warehouse and distribution facility at 2200
South Busse Road, Elk Grove Village, Illinois for approximately $20 million. The net
proceeds from the sale of $17.6 million were first used to pay the outstanding
balance ($6.7 million) of the $7.7 million term loan. The balance of the net
proceeds, $10.9 million, was used to reduce the outstanding balance of the revolving
portion of the credit facility with a concurrent reduction to the revolving loan
commitments. Also on December 10, 2004, Enesco’s lenders extended the time period teo
January 31, 2005 for Enesco and its lenders to agree on revised financial covenants
for the fiscal period ending December 31, 2004 and thereafter.

As of December 31, 2004, after giving effect to the reductions to the credit facility
related to the sale of the warehouse and distribution facility, the total credit
facility was $49.1 million.

On January 28, 2005, Enescc entered into an amendment with its lenders to its
domestic credit facility providing credit facility commitments of $45.0 million until
February 28, 2005 and $56.0 million until March 31, 200S5. The lenders also waived
the resetting of, and compliance with, financial covenants as of December 31, 2004.
Also on January 28, 2003, the term of the domestic credit facility was shortened to
end March 31, 2005.

On March 28, 2005, Enesco signed a commitment letter (the “Commitment”) with Fleet
Capital Corporation, operating as Bank o¢f America Business Credit (“BABC”), for BABC
to fully underwrite a $100 million global senicor revolving credit facility with a
five year term (the "“Senior Credit Facility”). Banc of America Securities LLC
("BAS”) expects to form a syndicate of financial institutions to participate in the
proposed Senior Credit Facility. In the event that the proposed Senior Credit
Facility cannot be successfully syndicated under the terms outlined in the Commitment
and related summary of terms and conditions (the “Term Sheet”), Enesco agrees that
BABC and BAS shall be entitled, in consultation with Enesco, with certain
limitations, to change the pricing, structure and other terms of the proposed Senior
Credit Facility if BABC and BAS determine that such changes are necessary to ensure a
successful syndication. Under the proposed Senior Credit Facility, Enesco will be
the borrower and its material domestic and foreign subsidiaries will be guarantors.
The proposed Senior Credit Facility will be secured by substantially all of the
assets of Enesco and its material domestic and foreign subsidiaries. The proposed
Senior Credit Facility will contain standard terms and conditions, including
financial and., other covenants, including, without limitation, restrictions on
incurring indebtedness and 1liens, acquisitions, selling property, repurchasing
Enesco’s shares and paying dividends. The Commitment is subject to the satisfaction
of several conditions in a manner acceptable to BABC and BAS in their reasonable
discretion: (a) each of the terms and conditions set forth in the Commitment and
Term Sheet; (b) the absence of a material breach of any representation, warranty or
agreement of Enesco set forth in the Commitment; (c) BABC’s and BAS’ satisfaction
that prior to and during the syndication of the Senior Credit Facility there shall be
no competing offering, placement or arrangement of any debt securities or bank
financing by or on behalf of Enesco or any of its subsidiaries (except that Enesco is
permitted to pursue an extension and amendment to its existing domestic credit
facility referred to above); (d) the negotiation, execution and delivery of
definitive documentation for the Senior Credit Facility consistent with the Term
Sheet and otherwise satisfactory to BABC and BAS and (e) BABC and BAS not becoming
aware after the date of the Commitment of any information or other matter which in
BABC's or BAS’ judgment is inconsistent in a material and adverse manner with any
information or other matter disclosed to BABC and BAS prior to the date of the
Commitment with respect to Enesco and its subsidiaries, their respective businesses
or financial condition, or the transactions contemplated in connection with the
Senior Credit Facility. Enesco expects to close on the proposed Senior Credit
Facility on or before April 30, 2005.
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On March 29, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with its lenders to its domestic
credit facility, effective March 31, 2005, extending the term of such facility
through January 1, 2006. The credit facility commitments range from $50 million to
$70 million, based on Enesco’s seasonal borrowing needs. The amendment also sets
certain financial covenants for 2005. In the event that the outstanding loans under
the domestic credit facility are not repaid in full: (i) by May 16, 2005, a fee in
the amount of $700,000 will become payable, (ii) by June 30, 2005, another fee of
$700,000 will become payable, and (iii) with proceeds provided by lenders that
include Fleet National Bank or an affiliate of Fleet National Bank, a fee of
$1,750,000 will become payable. Enesco plans to use borrowings under a new global
credit facility described in the following paragraph to payoff the loans under its
existing credit facility.

The Company believes that our current cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from
operations, and available financing will satisfy our expected working capital needs,
capital expenditures and other liquidity requirements associated with our existing

operations. Also, in the course of pursuing growth opportunities, including but not
limited to acquisitions and alliances, Enesco may need to negotiate additional or
amend existing credit facilities. In addition, there are no transactions,

arrangements or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons, as
of December 31, 2004, that are reasonably likely to materially affect liquidity or
requirements for capital resources.

3. Employee Benefit Plans:

Long-term liabilities for post-retirement benefits at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were
as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003
Post-retirement benefits $ 1,153 $ 1,720
Supplemental 401 (k) 1,643 1,201
Deferred compensation/severance 212 327
Balance sheet total $ 3,008 $ 3,248

Enesco has established grantor trusts to fund its non-qualified supplemental
retirement plans. The trusts are irrevocable and assets contributed are subject to
the claims of creditors and therefore, are not considered plan assets reportable as a
funding component under paragraph 19 of FAS No. 87. The assets are held in these
trusts at market value and amounted to $1.6 million at December 31, 2004, and $1.2
million at December 31, 2003. These assets are included in other assets in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Enesco had sponsored a defined benefit post-retirement health care and life insurance
plan that had liabilities of 51.2 million and $1.8 million as of December 31, 2004
and December 21, 2003, respectively. The liability is computed based on a future
insurance premium escalating at 15% annually less any employee contributions.
Certain non-employee directors and employees became eligible for the benefits under
this plan when they reached allowable retirement age while working or serving on the
Board of Directors at Enesco. Those benefits are provided principally through
insurance companies whose premiums are based on the anticipated benefits to be paid.
The total costs for such retired non-employee director or employee benefits were
principally accrued during the employment or service of the applicable non-employee
director or employee. All of the benefits for these plans are vested and all the
participants are former emplcyees and non-employee directors. The Dbenefits to
participants are either fixed dollar amounts per year or a percentage of insurance
premiums paid per year.
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The following table sets forth the funded status of the plan included in the current
and long~term 1liabilities sections of Enesco’s consclidated balance sheets at
December 31, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands):

2004 2003
Change in Benefit Obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 1,836 3 1,741
Service cost - -
Interest cost 80 81
Actuarial (gain) loss (534) 145
Benefits paid (144) (131)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 1,238 $ 1,836
Funded Status:
{Accrued) benefit cost S (1,238) S (1,836)

Net periodic post-retirement benefit expense includes the following components (in
thousands) :

2004 2003 2002
Service cost $ - 8 - 3 -
Interest cost 80 81 80
Recognized actuarial (gain) loss (534) 145 148
Net period benefit cost (income) $ (454) $ 226 $ 228

An estimated 15% annual rate of increases in per capita cost of covered health care
benefits was assumed for periods after December 31, 2004. Participants with fixed
dollar benefits are included at actual cost. Increasing the assumed health care
expense trend rates by one percentage point in each year would increase the
accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 2004 by $53,000 and
the interest cost components of the net post-~retirement benefit expense for the year
then ended by $11,000. A discount rate of 5% was used in determining the accumulated
post-retirement benefit.

In addition, certain foreign subsidiaries have established funded profit sharing and
defined contribution retirement plans.

Total consclidated profit sharing and retirement plan expense amounted to $1.9
million in 2004, $2.2 million in 2003, and $2.0 million in 2002.

4, Shareholders’ Equity:

Pursuant to action by Enesco’s Board of Directors {(the “Board”’) on July 22, 1998,
effective with the expiration on September 18, 1898 of the stock purchase rights then
existing under Enesco’s Stockholder Rights Plan, one new right for each outstanding
share of Enesco’s common stock was issued (a “New Right”) under a Renewed Rights
Agreement. Each New Right initially represents the right to purchase one share of
common stock for $125. The New Rights will only become exercisable, or separately
transferable, promptly after Enesco announces that a person has acquired or tendered
for 15% or more, or promptly after a tender offer commences that could result in
ownership of 15% or more, of the common stock then outstanding.

If the New Rights become exercisable after any person acquired or tenders for 15% or
more of the common stock then outstanding (except through an ocffer for all common
stock that has been approved by the Board), each New Right not owned by that person
or related parties will enable its holder to purchase, at the New Right's exercise
price, common stock (or other securities or assets, or a combination thereof) having
double the value of the exercise price. In the event of certain merger or asset sale
transactions with another party, similar terms would apply to the purchase of that
party’s common stock.
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The New,Rights, which have no voting power, expire on July 22, 2008, subject to
extension. Upon approval by the Board, the New Rights may be redeemed for $.01 each
under certain conditions. '

In 1996, the sharcholders approved a Stock Option Plan previously adopted by the
Board, which provides for both incentive and non-qualified stock options. Options for
up to 1.5 million shares of common stock may be granted under the 1996 Plan. The 1996
Plan, as amended by the Board in 1998, provides that non-qualified options for 1,500
shares of common stock be granted annually to each non-employee Director then
serving. In 2003, the shareholders approved an amendment previously adopted by the
Board to the 1996 Plan that increased the number of shares available for option
grants under the 1996 Plan from 1.5 million to 3.0 million and provided for vesting
of the options over four years, at the rate of 25% of the options per year, without
the restrictions on the exercise of vested options that was set forth in the 1996
Plan. '

In 2003, the Board adopted the BAmended and Restated 1996 Stock Option Plan and
renamed 1t the Amended and Restated 1996 Long~Term Incentive Plan. Shareholders
approved the Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan in 2004. The ZAmended
and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan amends and restates the 1996 Stock Option
Plan in its entirety. The Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan provides
for the grant of restricted shares, stock awards, performance awards and stock
appreciation rights, in addition to beth incentive and non-gualified option awards as
previously provided under the provisicns of the plan. The Amended and Restated 1996
Long-Term Incentive Plan also: (1) modifies the vesting provisions of the option
awards to provide the Compensation Committee with more £flexibility; (2) imposes
restrictions on the number of awards granted; (3) eliminates the non-employee
director options grant provisions (now contained in the Amended and Restated 1999
Non-Employee Director Stock Plan); (4) modifies the acceleration and termination
provisions relating to options; and (5) provides the Compensation Cocmmittee with
discretion to make tax gross—up payments, among other matters.

Enesco also has 1991 and 1984 Stock Option Plans, which provide for both incentive
and non-qualified stock options, under which options for up to 2 million and 3
million shares of common stock, respectively, could be granted. No further options
may be granted under the 1981 and 1984 Plans. All three Plans provide for the
granting to selected key employees, and non-employee Directors in the case of the
1991 Plan of options to acquire shares of common stock at a price not less than their
fair market wvalue at the time of grant. All remaining outstanding opticons granted
under the 1984 Stock Option Plan expired during 2004.

Other option terms are determined at the time of grant, but normally under the 1991
and 1984 Plans, options are exercisable only after a one-year waiting period with
vesting in four equal annual installments, and expire 10 years from the date of
grant. Under the 1996 Plan, options granted prior to April 2003 become exercisable
only after a six-month waiting period and upon Enesco’s achievement of certain stock
value performance criteria at any time during the first eight years after the date of
the grant. Under the 13996 Plan, as amended by shareholder approval in 2003, new
options vest equally over four years, with 253% of the shares subject to the vesting
on each of the first four anniversary dates of the date of grant of the option, with
the options being thereafter exercisable by the optionee regardless of the fair
market value of Enesco’s common stock. On the eighth anniversary of the grant, all
outstanding options granted under the 1996 Plan will become exercisable. Options
granted under the 1996 Plan will expire 10 years from the date of grant.

In 1998, the Board approved a special 1998 Chairman Stock Option Plan which provided
for a one-~time grant of 14,000 non-qualified stock options to Enesco’s then Chairman
of the Board. The options become exercisable six months from date of grant and expire
10 years from the date of grant. In 1997 and 1993, the Board approved a Special
Interim Chief Executive Officer Stock Option Plan and a 1997 President and Chief
Executive Officer Stock Option Plan, respectively, which provided for special grants
of non-gualified stock options to Enesco’s then Chief Executive Officer. The 1893
options vested fully in increments of 10,000 shares during each of the three months
in which he served in that capacity. The 1997 grant of 100,000 options vested fully
in increments of 12,500 shares each month from November 1997 through June 1998. Both
the 1997 and 1993 options become exercisable six months from the date of grant and
expire 10 years from the date of grant. The 1993 options expired during 2003.
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At December 31,
not including

2004,
the

1994

and

1983

respectively which are described above.

method allowed under APB Opinion No.
its fixed stock option plans.
for its fixed stock option plans.

earnings (loss)

Net incare (loss)

Bs reported
Pro fomma

Eamings (loss) per camon As reported

share diluted

The options granted in 2004,
of each option grant in 2004,
cption

the Black-Scholes
assumptions:

Annual dividend yield
Expected volatility
Risk~free interest rate
Expected life (years)

Pro fomma

2003 and 2002 were under the 1996 Plan.
2003 and 2002 was estimated at the time of grant using

pricing weighted-average

Accordingly,

2004

($45.2)
($47.5)

($3.16)
($3.32)

Weighted-average grant-date fair value of

options granted during the year, per share

Stock option status and activity under Enesco’s six stock-based compensation plans

model

(in millions,

that

Enesco had five stock-based compensation
options

Enesco’s net
2003 and 2002 would have been reduced to
except per share amounts):

2004
the

income

2003 2002
$17.3 ($8.4)
$15.9 ($2.6)
$1.20 ($0.60)
$1.14 (50.69)

with

$

the

2004

0.0%
36.0%

4.8%
10.0

4.80

following

2003

0.0%
46.0%

3.8%

8.0

$ 4.58 $

(fixed option)
expired during
Enesco applies

and 2003
intrinsic wvalue-based
25 and related interpretations in accounting for
no compensation cost has been recognized
Had compensation cost for option grants since 1994
under Enesco’s five stock-based compensation plans been determined by applying the
fair value based method provided for in FAS 123,
per common share for 2004,
the pro forma amounts indicated below

(loss)

The fair value

2002

0.0%
70.0%

4.9%

8.0

5.20

including the 1993 options that expired during 2004 are summarized as follows:

Shares Weighted-Average

Stock Options (000s) Exercise Price
Qutstanding at December 31, 2001 2,846 s 19.41
Granted 448 7.04
Exercised (36) 4.88
Forfeited (522) 25.98
Outstanding at December 31, 2002 2,736 16.32
Granted 527 8.14
Exercised (134) 5.17
Forfeited (394) 25.90
Outstanding at December 31, 2003 2,735 13.96
Granted 516 8.54
Exercised (262) 5.93
Forfeited (679) 21.34
Outstanding at December 31, 2004 2,310 S 11.49

2004 2003 2002
Stock Options Shares Shares Shares

(000s) (000s) (000s)
Options exercisable at year end 1,202 1,438 1,301




A summary of information regarding stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004 is
as follows: )

Number Weighted- Number
QOustanding Average Weighted~ Exercisable Weighted |
Range of at 12/31/04 Remaining Average as 12/31/04 Average
Exercise Prices (000s) Contractual Life Exercise Price (000s) Exercise Price
$4 to $15 1,732 8 $ 7.26 811 $ 6.45
$15 to $26 229 4 $ 17.16 119 s 17.60
$26 to $33 349 2 $ 28.78 172 $ 28.49
$4 to $33 2,310 7 $ 11.49 1,202 $ 10.71

An analysis of treasury stock transactions for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, is as follows (in thousands):

Common Stock

Shares Cost
Balance at December 31, 2001 11,459 $ 257,628
Exercise of Stock Options (36) {408)
Investment Savings Plans - 401 (k) issuances (85) (955)
Non-Employee Director Stock Plan issuances (19) (219)
Balance at December 31, 2002 11,319 256,045
Exercise of Stock Options (144) (1,514)
Stock Options Exchanges 10 105
Investment Savings Plans - 401 (k) issuances {104) {1,279)
Non-Employee Director Stock Plan issuances (17) (189)
Balance at December 31, 2003 11,064 253,168
Exercise of Stock Options (262) (2,951)
Employee Service Awards (3) (32)
Executive Employment Agreement issuances (25) (282)
Investment Savings Plans - 401 (k) issuances (89) (1,012)
Non-Employee Director Stock Plan issuances {14) {(161)
Balance at December 31, 2004 10,671 $ 248,730

In 1987, Enesco introduced an Investment Savings Plan for non-union employees in
accordance with Section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code. In 2003, Enesco amended
the Enesco Group, Inc. Retirement Profit Sharing Plan for Union Employees to allow
union employees to make contributions to this plan in accordance with Section 401 (k)
of the Internal Revenue Code. One of the features of these retirement savings plans
provides a common stock match for a portion of employee contributions to eligible
employees and allows Enesco a federal income tax deduction equal to the market value
of the issued stock. Compensation expense for common stock issued was $0.7 million
for 2004, $0.8 million for 2003 and $0.4 million for 2002.

In 1998, the Board adcpted ‘the 19939 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan. The Non-
Employee Director Stock Plan allows for an annual retainer of common stock worth $15
thousand per annum valued as of the day following the annual meeting for each non-
employee Director who is not the Chairman of the Board. For service as Chairman of
the Board, the Non-Employee Director Stock Plan allows for an annual retainer of
common stock worth $37,500 per annum valued as of the day following the annual
meeting. Compensation expense for common stock issued to non-employee Directors was
$0.1 million for 2004, $0.1 million for 2003 and $0.3 million for 2002.

In 2003, the Board adopted the Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock
Plan. Shareholders approved the Amended and Restated 1399 Non-Employee Director
Stock Plan in 2004. The Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan
amends and restates the 1999 Neon-Employee Director Stock Plan in its entirety. The
Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan increases the number of
shares available for grant from 100,000 to 300,000 shares of Enesco common stock.
The amendment also provides for the annual automatic grant of 2,000 non-qualified
stock opticons to non~employee directors. Additional changes were made to accommodate
the inclusion of option grants, with terms such as acceleration of vesting,
adjustments in capitalization and change in control and transferability.
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An analysis of the changes in capital in excess of par value for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is as follows (in thousands):

Increase / (Decrease)

2004 2003 2002
401 (k) plan $ (210) $ (411) 8 (384)
Non-employee director (33) (54) (82)
Employee achievement award (6) - -
Employment agreement issuance (111) - -
Exercise of stock options (1,399) (820) (232)
Total $ (1,759) $ (1,285) $ (698)

Other comprehensive income or loss consists only of cumulative foreign currency
translation adjustments.

On June 28, 2000, Enesco entered into a licensing agreement with Time Warner
Entertainment Company, LP. Pursuant to this agreement, Enesco issued Time Warner a
warrant to purchase 200,000 shares of Enesco’s common stock at an exercise price of

$4.375 per share (the “warrant”). Time Warner sold the warrant in August 2003 to
Highbridge International. This warrant expires June 27, 2005, subject to certain
extensions. The warrant’s fair value of $529,000, which was included in capital in

excess of par value, was determined using the Black-Scholes pricing model, assuming
an expected life of five years, a dividend yield of 0%, a risk-free interest rate of
6.789% and a volatility factor of 64%. The fair wvalue of the warrant was amortized as
a component of royalty expense in cost of sales over the term of the 1licensing
agreement.

5. Geographic Operating Segments (in thousands):

Enesco operates in one industry segment, giftware and collectible revenues at

wholesale, predominately in two major geographic areas (United States and
International). Net revenues and operating profit (loss) are grouped by customer
location.
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Geographic Areas 2004 2003 2002
Net Revenues

United States $ 161,858 $ 166,128 $ 184,139
United States inter-company (1,388) (1,286) (1,969)
International 109,546 92,332 80,864
International inter-company (1,049) (748) (704)
Total consolidated $ 268,967 $ 256,426 $ 262,330

Operating Profit (Loss)

United States $ (22,604) 5 5,345 3 4,927
International 6,881 10,571 8,843
Total consolidated $ (15,723) $ 15,916 $ 13,770

Long-~lived Assets
United States

Property, plant & equipment, net S 14,767 $ 22,480 $ 21,354

Other assets 12,450 25,260 23,038
Total United States 27,217 47,740 44,392
International

Property, plant & equipment, net 7,742 5,861 4,875

Other assets 4,151 2,952 57
Total International ~ 11,893 8,813 4,932
Total consolidated $ 39,110 $ 56,553 $ 49,324

Capital Expenditures

United States $ 3,605 3 4,292 $ 3,323
International 947 1,204 961
Total consolidated $ 4,552 $ 5,496 $ 4,284

Depreciation and Amortization

United States S 4,950 $ 3,165 $ 3,481
International 2,161 1,826 1,533
Total consolidated $ 7,111 $ 4,991 s 5,014

Total net revenues recorded in the United Kingdom for 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $71.5
million, $55.6 million and $45.1 million, respectively. Total long-lived assets in the
United Kingdom at December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $10.5 million, $6.6 million,
and $3.7 million respectively.

Total net revenues recorded in Canada for 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $30.1 million,
$30.8 million and $25.7 million, respectively. Total long-lived assets in Canada at
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $0.9 million, $0.8 million and $0.7 million,
respectively.

Transfers between geographic areas are made at the market value of the merchandise
transferred. No single customer accounted for 10% or more of consolidated net
revenues. Export revenues to foreign unaffiliated customers represent less than 10%
of consolidated net revenues.
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6. Income Taxes

The domestic and foreign components of the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are attributable to the following (in thousands):

2004 2003
Current Deferred Tax Assets
U.S. Federal--

NOL carryforward $ 15,914 S 854

Inventory valuation . ‘ 1,662 1,177

Receivables allowance 1,245 946

Cther items, net 3,104 596
U.5. State--

NOL carryforward . 3,978 213

Inventory valuation 415 294

Receivables allowance 311 237

Cther items, net 777 -
Foreign—-

Other items, net 920 672

Total Current Deferred Tax Assets $ 28,326 $ 4,989

Valuation Allowance ' (10,000) 0
$ 18,326 3 4,989

Non—Current Deferred Tax Assets

U.S. Federal--

NOL carryforward $ 7,497 $ 17,215

Post-retirement benefits ‘ 922 1,067

BAccelerated depreciation 870 -

Other items, net 81 14
U.S. State—- '

NOL carryforward 1,874 4,304

Post-retiremwent benefits 230 267

BAccelerated depreciation 217 -

Other items, net 21 3
Foreign--

Other items, net 10 994
Total Non-Current Deferred Tax Assets $ 11,722 $ 23,864
Valuation Allowance (8,640) 0

$ 3,082 $ 23,864
Current Deferred Tax Liazbilities
U.S. Federal——

Accelerated depreciation $ - $ 235

Unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries 17,406 -
U.S. State--

Accelerated depreciation - 59
Total Current Deferred Tax Liabilities $ 17,406 $ 294

The United States Net Operating Loss (NOL) carryforwards expire between 2020 and 2024.
In 2004 the Company provided a valuation allowance of $18.6 million for deferred tax
assets arising primarily from NOL carryforwards. The change in valuation allowances
for 2003 and 2002 were $0 and $0 respectively.

The ultimate realization of net deferred tax assets i1s dependent upon the generation
of future taxable income during (i) the years in which temporary differences reverse
and (ii) the years prior to the expiration of the NOL carryforward. Management
considers projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this
assessment. Based on these factors, management believes that it is more likely than
not that the Company will realize the benefits of the net deferred tax assets as of
December 31, 2004.
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The domestic and foreign components of income (loss) before income taxes and
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle are as follows (in thousands):
‘ 2004 2003 2002
Domestic $ (24,568) S (5,482) $ (8,301)
Foreign 6,735 19,814 20,077
$ (17,833) S 14,332 $ 11,776
Income taxes (benefit) consist of the following (in thousands):
2004 2003 2002
Currently Payable:
U.S. Federal $ - 5 (6,376) § (9,583)
U.S. State 111 (820) (4,669}
Foreign 2,687 3,380 3,483
Total current 2,798 (3,816) (10,769)
Deferred:
U.S. Federak 18,316 608 1,164
U.S. State 5,505 220 291
Foreign 736 38 417
Total deferred 24,557 866 1,872
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ 27,355 $ (2,950) $ (8,897)

A reconciliation of the total effective income

income tax rate is as follows:

tax rate to the statutory federal

2004 2003 2002
Expense (benefit) at U.S. statutory rate $ (6,242) 5,018 $ 4,122
State taxes, net of Federal income tax e (3,578) (387) (530)
Increase in valuation allowance 18,640 - -
Tax on unremitted earnings of certain
foreign subsidiaries 17,406 - -
Impact of foreign tax rates and (credits (99) (600) 153
Impact of nondeductible expenses 1,228 (129) 283
27,355 3,902 4,028
Reduction of income tax accruals - (6,852) (12, 9253)
Tax expense (benefit) $ 27,355 (2,950) § (8,837}

The 2004 tax expense includes a non-cash provision of $18.6 million to establish a
valuation allowance with respect to deferred tax assets and an additional non-cash
provision of $17.4 million of deferred taxes on unremitted earnings of foreign
subsidiaries which will be deemed to have been distributed due to the planned
guarantee in 2005 of the Company'’s debt. The 2003 benefit of $6.8 and the 2002
benefit of $12.9 million relate primarily to the reduction of income tax accruals,
which were no longer required due to the expiration of wvarious statutes of
limitations. An income tax benefit of $4.4 million was recorded as a component of the
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the Statement of Operations
for the year ended December 31, 2002. Enesco made income tax payments of $3.9
million in 2004, $4.5 million in 2003, and $1.5 million in 2002.

7. Cther Income (Expense) Net:
Other income (expense), net consists of the fcllowing (in thousands):
2004 2003 2002
Foreign currency loss $ (10) $ (10) S (16)
Bank charges and other (1,356) (1,324) (1,517)
§ (1,366) $ (1,334) $ (1,533)
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8. Financial Instruments:

Enesco operates globally with various manufacturing and distribution facilities and
product sourcing locations around the world. Enesco may reduce its exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates by creating offsetting
positions through the use of derivative financial instruments. Enesco does not use
derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. Enesco
regularly monitors foreign currency exposures and ensures that the hedge contract
amounts do not exceed the amounts of the underlying exposures.

Enesco’s current hedging activity is limited to foreign currency purchases and
intercompany foreign currency transactions. The purpose of Enesco’s foreign currency
hedging activities is to protect Enesco from the risk that the eventual settlement of
foreign currency transactions will be adversely affected by changes in exchange
rates. Enesco hedges these exposures by entering into various short-term foreign
exchange forward contracts. Under SFAS 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, the instruments are carried at fair value in the balance sheet as
a component of other current assets or other current liabilities. Changes in the fair
value of foreign exchange forward contracts that meet the applicable hedging criteria
of SFAS 133 are recorded as a component of other comprehensive income and
reclassified into earnings in the same period during which the hedged transaction
affects earnings. Changes in the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts
that do not meet the applicable hedging criteria of SFAS 133 are recorded currently
in income as cost of revenues or foreign exchange gain or 1loss, as applicable.
Hedging activities did not have a material impact on results of operations or
financial condition during 2004.

To manage foreign currency risk, as of December 31, 2004, Enesco entered into a
forward exchange agreement with a notional value of $6.2 million to mature within
five days. This contract was a sale of British pounds sterling and a purchase of
United States dollars at an average exchange rate $1.92. The fair wvalue of this
contract was not significant.

At December 31, 2004, Enesco had $26.4 million of interest bearing debt outstanding.

9. Commitments and Contingencies:

Enesco incurred rental expense under operating leases of $5.1 million in 2004, $4.3
million in 2003 and $3.8 million in 2002.

The minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases as of December
31, 2004, are as follows (in thousands):

2005 5 6,400
2006 5,500
2007 4,400
2008 3,500
2009 3,200
Latexr years 2,100
Total minimum future rentals $ 25,100

Enesco has entered into various licensing agreements reguiring royalty payments
ranging from 2% to 15% of specified product revenues. Royalty expenses, which are
charged to cost of sales undexr these licensing agreements, totaled $26.0 million in
2004, $18.9 million in 2003 and $21.3 million in 2002. Future minimum guaranteed
royalty payments are $15.5 million in 2005, $15.5 million in 2006, and $15.0 million
in 2007. Under the terms of certain royalty agreements, royalty payments made may be
subject to audit by the licensors. Historically, audit adjustments have not been
significant, and Enesco does not expect future audit adjustments to be significant.

On December 10, 2004, Enesco sold its warehouse and distribution facility, land and
certain pieces o©of machinery and equipment located in Elk Grove Village for
approximately $19.8 million. Enesco is also leasing back the facility for a five-
year term. The arrangement includes an option to renew and a termination provision.
The assets sold had a net book wvalue of 56.6 million on December 10, 2004. This
transaction resulted in the company recording a $4.0 million gain on the sale of
fixed assets in December 2004. The remaining gain of $8.6 million will be recognized
over the 5 year term of the lease, or $1.7 million per annum.
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There are various legal proceedings pending against Enesco, which have arisen during
the normal course of business. Management believes the ultimate outcome of those
legal proceedings will not have a material adverse impact on the financial position
or results of operations of Enesco.

10. Borrowing Facilities

In June 2003, Enesco entered into a new three year domestic $50.0 million unsecured
revolving credit facility that includes Enesco International (H.K.) Limited as a
borrowing subsidiary. The credit agreement contains financial and operating
covenants including restrictions on incurring indebtedness and liens, acquisitions,
selling property, repurchasing the Company’s shares and paying dividends. In
addition, Enesco was required tec satisfy fixed charge coverage ratio and leverage
ratic tests at the end of the second, third and fourth quarters and a minimum annual
operating profit covenant.

In March 2004, Enesco’s domestic $50.0 million credit facility was amended to add
term notes totaling $7.7 million for the purpose of funding the acquisition of Gregg
Gift. At the same time, Gregg Gift was added as a borrowing subsidiary and certain
financial covenants were modified.

In August 2004, Enesco negotiated a $10.0 million temporary increase through December
31, 2004 to its $57.7 million credit facility (to a total of $67.7 million) in order
to meet anticipated seasonal requirements for working capital. Following December
31, 2004, the credit facility reverted back to $57.7 million.

In November 2004, Enesco and 1ts lenders agreed to, on or before November 22, 2004,
agree upon revised financial covenants for the fiscal period ending December 31, 2004
and thereafter. Also in November 2004, Enesco entered into an amendment to its
credit facility providing a security interest in certain assets to its lenders.

On December 10, 2004, Enesco sold its warehouse and distribution facility at 2200
South Busse Road, Elk Grove Village, Illinois for approximately $20 million. The net
proceeds from the sale of $17.6 million were first used to pay the outstanding
balance ($6.7 million) of the $7.7 million term loan. The balance of the net
proceeds, $10.9 million, was used to reduce the ocutstanding balance of the revolving
portion of the credit facility with a concurrent reduction to the revolving loan
commitments. Also on December 10, 2004, Enesco’s lenders extended the time period to
January 31, 2005 for Enesco and its lenders to agree on revised financial covenants
for the fiscal period ending December 31, 2004 and thereafter.

As of December 31, 2004, after giving effect to the reductions to the credit facility
related to the sale of the warehouse and distribution facility, the total credit
facility was $49.1 millioen.

On January 28, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with its lenders to its
domestic credit facility providing credit facility commitments of $45.0 million until
February 28, 2005 and $56.0 million until March 31, 2005. The lenders also waived
the resetting of, and compliance with, financial covenants as of December 31, 2004.
Also on January 28, 2005, the term of the domestic credit facility was shortened to
end March 31, 2005. ’

On March 28, 2005, Enesco signed a commitment letter (the “Commitment”) with Fleet
Capital Corporation, operating as Bank of America Business Credit (“BARC”), for BARC
to fully underwrite a $100 million global senior revolving credit facility with a

five year term (the "“Senior Credit Facility”). Banc of America Securities LLC
("BAS”) expects to form a syndicate of financial institutions to participate in the
proposed Senior Credit Facility. In the event that the proposed Senior Credit

Facility cannot be successfully syndicated under the terms outlined in the Commitment
and related summary of terms and conditions (the “Term Sheet”), Enesco agrees that
BABC and BAS shall be entitled, in consultation with Enesco, with certain
limitations, to change the pricing, structure and other terms of the proposed Senior
Credit Facility if BABC and BAS determine that such changes are necessary to ensure a
successful syndication.
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Under the proposed Senior Credit’ Facility, Enesco will be the borrower and its
material® domestic and foreignm subsidiaries will be guarantors. The proposed Senior
Credit Facility -will be secured by substantially all of the assets of Enesco and its
material domestic and foreign subsidiaries. The proposed Senior Credit Facility will
contain standard terms and conditions, including financial and other covenants,
including, without limitation, restrictions on incurring indebtedness and 1liens,
acquisitions, selling property, repurchasing Enesco’s shares and paying dividends.
The Commitment is subject to the satisfaction of several conditions in a manner
acceptable to BABC and BAS in their reascnable discretion: (a) each of the terms and
conditions set forth in the Commitment and Term Sheet; (b} the absence of a material
breach of any representation, -warranty. or  agreement of Enesco set forth in the
Commitment; ({(c) BABC’s and BAS’ satisfaction that prior to and during the syndication
of the Senicr Credit Facility there shall be no competing offering, placement or
arrangement of any debt securities or bank financing by or on behalf of Enesco or any
of its subsidiaries (except that Enesco is permitted to pursue an extension and
amendment to 1its existing decmestic credit facility referred to above); (d) the
negotiation, execution and delivery of definitive documentation for the Senior Credit
Facility consistent with the Term Sheet and otherwise satisfactory to BABC and BAS
and (e) BABC and BAS not becoming aware after the date of the Commitment of any
information or other matter which in BaABC’'s or BAS’ Jjudgment is inconsistent in a
material and adverse manner with any information or other matter disclosed to BABC
and BAS prior to the date of the Commitment with respect to Enesco and its
subsidiaries, their respective businesses or financial condition, or the transactions
contemplated in connection with the Senior Credit Facility. Enesco expects to close
on the proposed Senior Credit Facility on or before April 30, 2005.

On March 29, 2005, Enesco entered into an amendment with its lenders to its domestic
credit facility, effective March 31, 2005, extending the term of such facility

through January 1, 2006. The credit facility commitments range from $50 million to
$70 million, based on Enesco’s seascnal borrowing needs. The amendment also sets
certain financial covenants for 2005. In the event that the outstanding loans under

the domestic credit facility are not repaid in full: (i) by May 16, 2005, a fee in
the amount of $700,000 will become payable, (ii) by June 30, 2005, ancther fee of
$700,000 will become payable, and (iii) with proceeds provided by lenders that
include Fleet National Bank or an affiliate of Fleet National Bank, a fee of
$1,750,000 will become payable. Enesco plans to use borrowings under a new global
credit facility described in the following paragraph to payoff the loans under its
existing credit facility.

The Company believes that our current cash and cash equivalents, cash generated from
operations, and available financing will satisfy our expected working capital needs,
capital expenditures and other liquidity requirements associated with our existing

operations. BAlso, in the course of pursuing growth opportunities, including but not
limited to acquisitions and alliances, Enesco may need to negotiate additional or
amend existing <c¢redit facilities. In addition, there are no transactions,

arrangements or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons, as
of December 31, 2004, that are reasonably likely to materially affect liquidity or
requirements for capital resources.

11. Acgquisitions
Acguisitions

In February 2004, Enesco acquired Gregg Gift for $7.3 million. Gregg Gift is a United
States-based supplier and distributor of giftware. Gregg Gift’s product line includes
book covers, organizers, tote bags, garden and home décor accessories that are
distributed through Christian retailers, mass market, catalogs, book shops and card
and gift stores. During the first quarter of 2005, Enesco began tc integrate certain
areas of Gregg Gift, including utilizing Enesco's field sales force to sell Gregg
Gift's product to independent card and gift retailers. In connection with the Gregg
Gift acguisition, the Company recorded approximately $5.3 million of goodwill.

In July 2004, Enesco Limited acquired certain assets of Dartington Crystal Limited
(Dartington) for $7.0 million. Dartington is a United Kingdom based designer and
manufacturer of uncut crystal. Dartington's product line includes glassware, bowls,
vases, candleholders and giftware. In connection with the Dartington acquisition,
the Company recorded approximately $4.1 million of goodwill.

The results of operations of these two acguisitions are included in the consolidated
statement of operations since their acquisition dates.
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REPORT OF INDEFENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of Enesco Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Enesco Group, Inc.
and subsidiaries (the Company} as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, retained earnings, comprehensive income and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004.
In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have
audited the financial statement schedule, as it relates to the years ended December
31, 2004, 2003, and 2002. These consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Cur
responsibility is to exXpress an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test

basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinicn, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Enesco Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each o¢f the years in the three-~year periocd ended December
31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in
our opinion the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to
the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein.

As disclosed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed
its method of accounting for gocdwill as of January 1, 2002.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Chicago, Illirois
Maxch 30, 200%




ENESCO GROUP, INC, SCEEDULE II

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES
FOR ERCH OF THE THREE YEARRS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
aAdditions
Balance at Charged to Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Costs and Other End of
Period Expenses Accounts Deductiens Period
Description

Fox the year ended December 31, 2002

Reserves which are deducted in the
balance sheet from assets to which

they apply-

Reserves for uncollectible accounts s 2,858,850 $ 1,633,892 $ - $ 1,735,650 $ 2,757,192
Reserves for returns and allowances $ 1,748,393 $ 3,594,676 $ - $ 4,160,152 $ 1,182,917
Accumulated amortization of other

assets $ 36,317,424 $ - $ ~ $ 36,317,424 s -
Reserve for downsizing corporate

headguarters $ 1,262,145 § - 8 ~ 8 768,111  $ 494,034
Reserve for discontinued operations 3 265,987 $ ~ $ - $ 53,530 $ 212,457

For the year ended Decembexr 31, 2003

Reserves which are deducted in the
balance sheet from assets to which

they apply-

Reserves for uncollectible accounts $ 2,757,182 S 2,156,292 $ - $ 1,960,043 $ 2,953,441

Reserves for returns and allowances s 1,182,917 $ 3,420,902 $ - $ 2,953,491 $ 1,650,328

Accumulated amortization of other

assets $ - 8 - $ - 8 - 3 -

Reserve for downsizing corporate

headquarters $ 494,034 $ - 8 - 8 172,234 § 321,800

Reserve for discontinued operations S 212,457 $ - $ - $ 123,156 s 85,301
d D. 1

Reserves which are deducted in the
balance sheet from assets to which

they apply-

Reserves for uncollectible accounts s 2,953,441 S 2,329,074 $ - $ 1,317,856 $ 3,964,659
Reserves for returns and allowances $ 1,650,328 $ 2,604,931 § - § 1,754,739 §$ 2,500,520
Reserve for downsizing corporate .

headquarters $ 321,800 $ - s - $ (321,800) $ -
Reserve for discontinued operations s 89,301 $ - $ - $ (7,150) § 82,151

Valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets $ - $ 18,640,000 $ - $ - $ 18,640,000
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QUARTERLY RESULTS:

Enesco Group, Inc.

The following tables set forth information with respect to the consolidated quarterly
results of operations for 2004 and 2003. The amounts are unaudited, but in the
opinion of management include all adjustments necessary to present fairly the results
of operations for the periods indicated.

In the fourth guarter of 2003, Enesco recognized a $6.9 million tax benefit primarily
for prior year tax accruals that were no longer required. In the fourth quarter of
2004, Enesco recorded a non-cash income tax expense of $18.6 million to establish a
valuation allowance with respect to deferred tax assets and an additional non-cash
income tax expense of $17.4 million to record a deferred tax liability with respect
to unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries. See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. Also in the fourth quarter of 2004, the Company reccrded a $2.2
million increase to cost of sales for excess and obsolete inventory.

The Company recorded in December 2004 approximately $2.2 million as an increase to
the inventory reserve for excess and obsolescence,

For the Three Months Ended

March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
2004 2004 2004 2004

Net revenues $ 52,323 $ 61,695 $ 85,291 $§ 69,658
Cost of sales 30,014 34,466 50,578 47,365
Gross profit 22,309 27,229 34,713 22,293
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 29,531 28,868 32,709 35,144
Sale of building (gain) - - - (3,985)
Operating profit (loss) $ (7,222) $ (1,639) & 2,004 $ (8,866)
Net income (loss) $ (4,402) $ (1,182) §$ 1,039 $ (40,673)
Earnings (loss) per common
share:

Basic $ (0.31) $ (0.08) $ 0.07 $ (2.80)

Diluted $ (0.31) $ (0.08B) § 0.07 $ (2.80)

For the Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31,
2003 2003 2003 2003

Net revenues $ 49,061 $ 62,713 $ 72,983 3 71,669
Cost of sales 29,248 33,992 41,108 36,366
Gross profit 19,813 28,721 31,875 35,303
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 24,324 24,701 24,746 26,025
Operating profit (loss) $ (4,511) $ 4,020 $ 7,129 $ 9,278
Net income (loss) $ (2,791) $ 2,174 $ 4,597 $ 13,302
Earnings (loss) per common
share:

Basic $ (0.,20) § 0.15 $ 0.33 3 0.94

Diluted $ (0.20) § 0.15 $ 0.32 $ 0.90

The sum of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share for 2004 and 2003 gquarters
does not egual the full year amcunt due to rounding and the impact of changes in
average shares outstanding.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Enesco Group, Inc.

The financial data set forth below should be read in connection with the financial
statements, accompanying notes and Management’s Discussion and 2Analysis on the
preceding pages.

(In thousands, except per share 2004 2003 ' 2002 2001 2000
amounts)

Net revenues (1,5) $ 268,967 $ 256,426 $ 262,330 $ 275,294 $ 333,031
Cost of sales (2) 162,423 140,714 151,264 167,358 191,269
Gross profit $ 106,544 $ 115,712 $ 111,066 $ 107,936 $ 141,762

Selling, general and administrative

expenses 126,252 99,796 97,296 115,534 132,675
Sale of building (gain) (3,985) - - - -
Amortization of goodwill (3} - - - 1,950 2,658
Operating profit (loss) (15,723) 15,916 13,770 (8,548) 6,428
Interest expense (1,148) (787) (747) (1,523) (3,198)
Interest income 404 537 286 371 1,161
Other income (expense), net (1,366) (1,334) (1,533) (1,342) 759

Income (loss) before income taxes
and cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle (17,833) 14,332 11,776 (12,042) 5,153

Income tax benefit (expense) (4) (27,355) . 2,850 8,897 13,153 9,939

Income (loss) before cumulative
effect of a change in accounting
principle (3} (45,188) 17,282 20,673 1,111 15,092

Cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle, net of income
taxes - - (29,031) - -

Net income (loss) $ (45,188) 17,282 § (8,358) 8§ 1,111 $ 15,092

Earnings (Loss) per Common Share:

Basic:

Income {loss) before cumulative
effect of a change in accounting
principle $ (3.16)

Cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle, net of tax $ -
Net income (loss) $ (3.16)
Diluted:

Income (loss) before cumulative

effect of a change in accounting

principle $ (3.16)
Cumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle, net of tax $ -
Net income (loss) $ (3.16)
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In thousands, except per share 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
amounts) I —_ _—
Average shares of common stock -

basic 14,309 14,028 13,854 13,708 13,562
Average shares of common stock -

diluted 14,821 14,444 14,110 13,836 13,636
Shares of common stock outstanding

at year end 14,557 14,164 13,909 13,769 13,612
Market value per common share at

vear end $ 8.08 S 10.32 $ 7.08 § 6.30 $ 4.69
Cash dividends declared $ - $ - $ - $ - 8 3,782
Dividends declared per common share $ - $ - $ - $ - $ c.28
Capital expenditures $ 4,552 § 5,918 $ 4,284 3 2,729 $ 4,794
Depreciation and amortizatiocon $ 7,111 § 5,236 8§ 5,014 § 5,071 § 5,948
Working capital $ 79,995 § 94,351 § 76,099 § 54,389 § 58,931
Total assets $ 193,883 $ 202,468 § 179,785 § 219,551 § 231,479
Total long-term liabilities $ 9,838 S 3,551 § 3,795 § 3,938 S 11,562
Shareholders' equity $ 109,267 $ 147,239 § 121,913 § 126,377 § 125,693
Book value per common share $ 7.51 § 10.40 $ 8.7¢ § 9.18 $§ 9.23
Return on average shareholders’ (35%) 13% (7%} 1% 13%

equity

(1) Revenue figures include shipping and handling costs billed to customers and are
reduced by co-op advertising allowances.

(2) Cost of sales includes non-cash charges of $8.7 million in 2001 related to the
write-down of inventory values as part of Enesco’s product rationalization
program, $2.8% million in 2000.

(3) Amortization of goodwill ended 1/1/02 with the adoption of FAS 142.
Additionally, the adoption of FAS 142 resulted in Enesco writing off $29.0
million of goodwill in 2002 recorded as a cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle.

(4) The 2004 provision for 1income taxes includes an §18.6 million expense to
establish a valuation allowance with respect to deferred tax assets. The
2004 tax provision also includes a $17.4 million expense to create a
deferred tax liability for unremitted earnings of foreign subsidiaries that
will be deemed to have been distributed due to the planned guarantee in 2005
of the Company’s debt. The tax expense for 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000
inciuded benefits of §6.8 millicn, $12.9 million, $9.4 million and §12
million respectively related primarily to prior year accruals that were no
longer necessary as a result of completed tax audits and closed tax years.

(5) Enesco reclassified revenue and expenses associated with club sales from SG&A
to revenues and cost of sales. As a result, revenues Iincreased $6.6
millicn, $7.4 million, $8.5 million, $8.2 million, and $9.2 million in 2004,
2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000 respectively. Cost of sales increased by §3.5
millicn, &$3.9 million, $4.6 million, $6.5 million, and $6.4 million,
respectively. S5G&A increased by $3.1 million, $£3.5 million, $3.9 million,
$1.7 million, and $2.9 million respectively.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Interest Rate Risk -

Enesco’'s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to
its domestic credit facility. The outstanding balance under its credit facility
accrues interest at a variable rate. As of December 31, 2004, Enesco had a total of
$26.4 million of interest bearing debt outstanding, including debt outside the United
States of $1.5 million, with a floating interest rate of approximately 4%. If
amounts outstanding under Enesco’s credit facility remained at this year-end level
for an entire year and the variable interest rate increased or decreased by 1%, the
annual interest expense or savings, respectively, would be approximately £0.3
million.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk -

See “Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” Note 8 - Financial Instruments.

ITEM 8. - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

{a) (1) and (2) Financial Statements and Schedules. The financial statements and
schedules required by this item are listed in the Index to Financial Statements and
Schedules of Enesco Group, Inc. on page 53 of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

Enesco has no disagreements with its independent auditors regarding accounting or
financial disclosure matters.

ITEM SA. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.

(a) Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15(d)-15(e})
as of December 31, 2004. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to
ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports filed
by the Company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive O0Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures
were effective as of December 31, 2004.

Enesco is committed to a continuing process of identifying, evaluating and
implementing improvements to the effectiveness of our disclosure and internal controls
and procedures. Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer, does not expect that our controls and procedures will prevent all
errors. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only
reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met.
Because of the inherent limitaticns in all control systems, no evaluation of controls
can provide absolute assurance that all control issues within Enesco have been
detected. These inherent Jlimitations include the realities that judgments in
decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error
or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some
persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override of the control.
The design of any system of controls i1s also based in part upon certain assumptions
about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design
will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions.
Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the
inherent limitations in any control system, misstatements due to error or violations
of law may occur and not be detected.
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{(b) There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the
guarter ended December 31, 2004, that have materially affected or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

(c) Enesco is currently completing a comprehensive effort in preparation for
compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. This effort includes
the documentation, testing and review of our internal controls under the direction of
senior management. During the course of these activities, we have identified certain
significant deficiencies relating to internal controls which senior management
believed needed to be corrected and many of which have been corrected; however,

further remediation will occur in 2005. As a 7result, we are evaluating and
implementing further improvements to our internal controls over financial reporting
and will continue to do so. These improvements include improved segregation of
duties, further formalization of financial review policies and procedures and
implementation of additional information technology general controls. To date: (1)
management has not identified any “material weakness” as defined by the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (PCACB); however, as management completes its

evaluation process, there can be no assurance that one or more material weaknesses
will not Dbe identified; and (2) management has not yet determined whether the
significant deficiencies it has identified relating to internal controls,
individually or in the aggregate, constitute a “material weakness” as defined by the
PCAOB. To the extent any additional internal control issues are identified in
connection with Enesco’s continued compliance efforts, they will be addressed
accordingly. We plan to file an amendment to this Form 10-K with further disclosure
on Enesco’s compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 no later
than May 2, 2005.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

NONE.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

Information required by this item regarding the directors of Enesco is set forth
under the captions "Proposal 1: Election of Directors" and "Information as to Board
of Directors and Nominees" in Enesco's Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference. Information required by this item regarding the executive officers of
Enesco is. included under the caption “Executive COfficers of the Registrant” in Part
I, Item 4A, hereof, and is incorporated herein by reference, in accordance with
General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K and Instruction 3 to Item 401 (b) of Regulation
S-K. Information required by this item regarding reporting compliance is included
under the caption "Section 16{(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”" in
Enesco's Proxy Statement and 1s incorporated herein by reference. Enesco will file
its Proxy Statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission not later than 120
days after the end of the 2004 fiscal year end covered by this Report.

The Company has a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to its Chief
Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Principal Accounting Officer, Controller
and persons performing similar functions. A copy of the Company’s Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics is available at the Company’s website at www.enesco.com under the
Investor Relations Section of the Company’s website. A copy of the Company’s Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics 1is alsc available free of charge by writing to the
Company’s Secretary at 225 Windsor Drive, Itasca, Illinois 60143. The Company also
intends to disclose on its website any amendments that it makes to, or waivers that
it grants from, the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics affecting the
Company’s principal executive officers, principal financial officer and principal
accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions that relate

to deterring wrongdeing or promoting: (i)honest and ethical conduct, including the
ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and
professional relationships; (ii) £full, fair, accurate, timely and understandable

disclosure in reports and documents that the Company files with, or submits to, the
Securities and Exchange Commission and in other public communications made by the
Company; (iii) compliance with applicable governmental laws, rules and regulations;
(iv) the prompt internal reporting of violations of the Company’'s Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics to an appropriate person or persons identified in the Company'’'s
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics; and (v} accountability for adherence to the
Company’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

Information required by this item 1s set forth under the captions "Executive
Compensation,™ "Human Resocurce and Compensation Committee Report on Executive
Compensation," "Performance Graph,” "Compensation of Directors" and "Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the Company's Proxy Statement and
is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

Equity Compensation Plan Infermation

The following table sets forth certain information as of December 31, 2004, with
respect to compensation plans under which shares of Enesce common stock may be
issued.

Number of Weighted~average Number of
Securities or Exercise Price Securities
Securities to be of Outstanding Remaining
Issued Upon Options, Available
Exercise of Warrants and for Future
Options, Warrants Rights ($) Issuance
Plan Category and Rights (#) Under Equity
Compensation
Plans (#)
Equity compensation plans approved by our
shareholders:
1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan 123,343 $8.95 176,657
Amended and Restated 1996 Long Term
Incentive Plan 1,734,970 11.11 1,189,155
1991 Stock Option Plan 397,093 15.16 -
Equity securities not approved by Enesco
shareholders: .
1998 Chairman Stock Option Plan 14,000 $25.81 -
1999 cancellation of Non-Employee
Directors Retirement Plan 20,523 - -

Shares issued as partial compensation
for services Chair of Executive

Search Committee 17,292 - -
Warrants to purchase common stock 200,000 4,38 -
Options to purchase common stock 177,997 6.05 -

Total 2,685,218 $10.93 1,365,812

Security Ownership of Management

Information required by this item is set forth under the caption “Our Largest
Stockholders” and "Shares Held by Our Directors and Executive Officers" in the
Company's Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.

Information required by this item is set forth under the caption ™“Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” in the Company’s Proxy Statement and is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

Information required by this item is set forth under the caption "Independent Public
Accountants" in the Company's Proxy Statement and 1is incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

fa) (1) and (2) Financial Statements and Schedules. The financial
statements and schedules required by this item are listed in the Index to Financial
Statements and Schedules of Enesco Group, Inc. on page 53 of this Form 10-K.

(a) (3) Exhibits. The exhibits required by this item are listed in the
Exhibit Index on pages 64 - 66 of this Form 10-K. The management contracts and
compensatory plans or arrangements required to be filed as an exhibit to this Form
10-K are listed as Exhibits 10(a) to 10(s) in the Exhibit Index.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the reguirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on the 31lst day of March, 2005.

ENESCO GRCUP, INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin
Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin
President and Chief
Executive Officer

By: /s/ Paula E. Manley
Paula E. Manley
Chief Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has
~been signed below on the 31st day of March, 2005 by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities indicated.

Signature Title

/s/ Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin
Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin Director, President and
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Anne-Lee Verville
Anne-Lee Verville Chairman of the BRoard,
Director

/s/ Judith R. Haberkorn
Judith R. Haberkorn Director

/s/ Donna Brooks Lucas
Donna Brooks Lucas Director

/s/ George R. Ditomassi
George R. Ditomassi Director

/s/ Thane A. Pressman
Thane A. Pressman Director

/s/ Hector J. Orci
Hector J. Orci Director

/s/ Leonard A. Campanaro
Leonard A. Campanaro Director
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Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Enesco Group, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (No. 2-
97934, No. 33-11415, No. 33-42974, No. 33-50723, No. 33-58633, No. 333-11501, No.
333-48957, No. 333-68289, No. 333-69087, No. 333-75345, No. 333-91312, No. 333-91318,
No. 333-105062, No. 333-105063, No. 333-108798, No. 333-108799 and No. 333-115730) of
Enesco Group, Inc. of our report dated March 30, 2005 with respect to the
consolidated balance sheets of Enesco Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, retained
earnings, comprehensive income and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2004, and the related consolidated financial statement
schedule, as it relates to the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, which

report appears in the December 31, 2004 annual report on Form 10-K of Enesco Group,
Inc. and subsidiaries.

Our report on the consclidated financial statements refers to the Company’s change in
method of accounting for goodwill as of January 1, 2002.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 30, 2005
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification under Exchange Act Rules 13a-14 and 15d-14 Pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Enesco Group, Inc. (the
“Registrant”). :

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information
included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for,
the periods presented in this report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing
and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a2-15e and 15d-15e) for the Registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure
controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

) Reserved

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of +the Registrant’s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered
by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the Registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or 1is reasconably likely to materially
affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most
recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s BRBoard of
Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation
of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and
report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees
who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

/s/ Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

Certification under Exchange Act Rules 1l3a-15e and 15d-15e Pursuant to Section 302 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Paula E. Manley, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Enesco Group, Inc. (the
“Registrant”).

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a
material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e) for the Registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such
disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

b) Reserved

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and
procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the Registrants fourth fiscal quarter in the case
of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on ocur

most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the Registrant’s Board of
Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or
operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other
employees who have a significant role in the Registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

/s/ Paula E. Manley
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Enesco Group, Inc. (the “Company”)
for the annual period ended December 31, 2004, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commissicon on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin, the
President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 135C as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of the operations of the
Company.

March 31, 2004
By: /s/ Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Enesco Group, Inc. (the
“Company”) for the annual period ended December 31, 2004, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Paula E.
Manley, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
section 1350 as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) and 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of the operations of the
Company.

March 31, 2004
By: [/s/ Paula E. Manley
Chief Financial Officer

65




EXHIBIT INDEX

Reg. S-K
Item 601 EXHIBIT

2 (a)* Stock and Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of November 24,
1997 by and between Stanhome Inc. and Laboratoires De
Biologie Vegetale Yves Rocher. (Exhibit 2.1 to Form 8-K
filed on December 31, 1997 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

3 (a)* Articles of Incorporation as amended. (Exhibit 3(a) to
Form 10-K filed on March 12, 2004 in Commissiocn File No.
0-1349.)

3 (b)* By-Laws. (Exhibit 3(b) to Form 10-K filed on March 12,
2004 in Commission File no. 0-1349.)

4 (a)* Renewed Rights Agreement dated as of July 22, 1998 between
‘ Enesco Group, Inc. and Mellon Investor Services L.L.C.
Exhibit 4 to Form 8-K filed on July 23, 1998 in
Commission File No. 0-1349.)

4 (b)* Warrant Agreement dated June 29, 2000 by and between
Enesco Group, Inc. and Warner Bros. (Exhibit 4 to Form
10-Q filed for the period ended June 30, 2000 in
Commission File No. 0-1349.)

10 (a)* 1991 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated through
December 4, 1996. (Exhibit 10 (b) to Form 10-K filed for
the period ended December 31, 1996 in Commission File
No. 0-1349.)

10 (b)~* Special Interim Chief Executive Officer Stock Option Plan.
(Exhibit 10(c) to Form 10-K filed for the period ended
December 31, 1993 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

10 (c)* Amended and Restated 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan.
(Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8 filed on May 21, 2004 in
Commission File No. 0-1349.)

10 (d)~* 1998 Chairman Stock Option Plan. (Exhibit 10(f) to Form
10-K filed for the period ended December 31, 1998 in
Commission File No. 0-1349.)

10 (e)* Non-Employee Director Stock Plan. (Exhibit 10 to
Form 10-Q filed for the period ended March 31, 1995 in
Commission File No. 0-1349.)

10 (f)~* Amended and Restated 1999 Non-Employee Director Stock Plan.
(Exhibit 4.1 to Form S-8 filed on May 21, 2004 in period
ended March 31, 1995 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

10 (g)* Form of Change in Control Agreement. (Exhibit 19(c) to Form
10-K filed for the period ended December 31, 1992 in
Commission File No. 0-1349.) A substantially identical
agreement exists with Cynthia Passmore-McLaughlin.

10 (h)~* Form of Change in Control Agreement with certain executive
officers and non-executive officers (Exhibit 19(c) to
Form 10-K filed for the period ended December 31, 1991
in Commission File No. 0-1349.) Substantially identical
agreements exist with M. Frances Durden, Josette V.
Goldberg, Paula E. Manley, Jeffrey S. Smith and Charles E.
Sanders.

10 (1) Enesco Group, Inc. Supplemental Retirement Plan, as amended
and restated, effective January 1, 2005.

10 () * License Agreement between Precious Moments, Inc. and Enesco
Corporation. (Exhibit 10 to Ferm 10-Q filed for the period
ended June 30, 1993 in Commission File
No. 0-1349.)
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(k) *

(1)~

{n)}*

(p)*

(r)*

(t)~

(u) *

(v)*

(w) >

First Amendment to License Agreement between Precious
Moments, Inc. and Enesco Corporation. (Exhibit 10 (hh)

to Form 10-K filed ON March 27, 1998 for the period ended
December 31, 1997 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Second Amendment to License Agreement between Precious
Moments, Inc. and Enesco Corporation. (Exhibit 10 (bb)

to Form 10-K filed on March 29, 1999 for the period ended
December 31, 1998 in Commissicon File No. 0-1349.)

Third Amendment to License Agreement between Precious
Moments, Inc. and Enesco Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10.1) to

Form 10-Q filed on November 14, 2004 for the period ended
September 30, 2001 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Fourth Amendment to License Agreement between Precious
Moments, Inc. and Enesco Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10(q) to
Form 10-K filed on March 27, 2003 for the period ended
December 31, 2002 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Fifth Amendment to License Agreement between Precious
Moments, Inc. and Enesco Group, Inc. (Exhibit 10.1 to

Form 10-Q filed on May 15, 2003 for the periocd ended March
31, 2003 in Commission File No. 0-1349.)

Sixth Amendment to License Agreement between

Precious Moments, Inc. and Enesco Group, Inc. (Exhibit

10 to Form B8-K filed on September 27, 2004 in Commission
File No. 0-1349.)

License Agreement between Jim Shore Designs, Inc. and
Enesco Group, Inc. {(Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K filed on October
5, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349%.)

Second Amended and Restated Senicr Revolving Credit
Agreement dated June 16, 2003 by and among Enesco Group,
Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit
10.1 to Form 8-K filed on June 189, 2003 in Commission File
No. 0~1349.)

First Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior
Revolving Credit Agreement by and among Enesco Group, Inc.,
Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10(r)
to Form 10-K filed on March 12, 2004 in Commission File No.
0-1349.)

Second Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior
Revolving Credit Agreement by and among Enesco Group, Inc.,
Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10.1 to
Form 8-K filed on August 11, 2004 in Commission File No.
0-1349.)

Third Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior
Revolving Credit Agreement by and among Enesco Group, Inc.,
Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10.1 to
Form 10-Q filed on November 8, 2004 in Commission File No.
0-1349.)

Fourth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior
Revolving Credit Agreement by and among Enesco Group, Inc.,
Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10.1 to
Form 8-K filed on November 24, 2004 in Commission File No.
0-1349.)

Mortgage, Assignment of Leases and Rents and Security
Agreement between Enesco Group, Inc. and Fleet National
Bank, as Agent (Exhibit 10.2 to Form 8~K filed on
November 24, 2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349.,)
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31.
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32.
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(aa)
(bb)

(cc)*

(dd)*
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Fifth Amendment to Second Amended and Restated Senior
Revolving Credit Agreement by and among Enesco Group, Inc.,
Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10.1 to
Form 8-K filed January 31, 2005 in Commission File No.
0-1349.)

ROA Incentive Program 2004. (Exhibit 10.1 to Form 10-Q
filed on May 10, 2004).

Cynthia Passmore-MclLaughlin Employment Agreement (Exhibit
10 to Form 8-K filed on September 16, 2004 in Commission
File No. 0-1349).

Enesco Group, Inc. 2005 Bonus Plan.
Enesco Group, Inc. Senior Leadership Bonus Program 2005.

Agreement to Purchase Industrial Building between Enesco
Group, Inc. and CenterPoint Properties Trust dated December
10, 2004. (Exhibit 99 to Form 8-K filed on December 13,
2004 in Commission File No. 0-1349).

Letter Amendment to Fifth Amendment to Second Amended and
Restated Revolving Credit Agreement among Enesco Group,
Inc., Fleet National Bank and LaSalle Bank N.A. (Exhibit
10 to Form 8-K filed on February 17, 2005 in Commission
File No. 0-1349).

Sixth Amendment to Seceond Amended and Restated Revolving
Credit Agreement among Enesco Group, Inc., Fleet National
Bank and LaSalle Bank, N.A. (Exhibit 10 to Form 8-K filed
on March 29, 2005 in Commission File No. 0-1349).
Subsidiaries of Enesco Group, Inc.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Power of Attorney

Certification of Chief Executive Officer under Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial QOfficer under Exchange
Act Rules 13A-15e and 15d-13%e pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes~Oxley Act of 2002,

Statement of Chief Executive OQOfficer Pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Statement of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

*Incorporated By Reference
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